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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript follows in sequence from Volume 1.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Call the hearing back to order. 

Yr. Wharton, Mr. Deterding, you may call your next witness. 

MR. DETERDING: Thank you, Commissioner. We call 

Zharles Drake. 

CHARLES W. DRAKE 

was called as a witness on behalf of Farmton Water Resources, 

LLC and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Mr. Drake, have you been sworn? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Please state your name and employment address. 

A Charles W. Drake, Hartman & Associates, Incorporated, 

201 East Pine Street, Orlando, Florida 32801. 

Q Have you been retained by Farmton to provide 

testimony and expert opinions in this proceeding? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Did you prepare in conjunction with my office a 

document referred to as prefiled direct testimony of Charles W. 

Drake consisting of three pages? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q If I ask you those same questions today, would your 

answers be the same? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes, they would. 

Q Do you have any corrections to make to that 

:est imony? 

A No, I don't. 

Q Did you prepare in conjunction with the preparation 

if your direct testimony an exhibit which was marked as CWD-l? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Do you have any corrections to that exhibit? 

A No, I don't. 

MR. DETERDING: Commissioner, I assume that is - -  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That is Exhibit 6 and it has 

2een identified and admitted. 

MR. DETERDING: Thank you. 

3Y MR. DETERDING: 

Q Mr. Drake, please provide the Commission with a 

summary of your direct testimony. 

A It's pretty simple, that Farmton Water Resources has 

the ability and is best suited to provide water services to 

xstomers in the proposed certificated area primarily because 

D f  the many functions and activities that occur on the land and 

2 l so  the physical features of the land, the wetlands, surface 

water bodies, the mitigation banks that are on the property, 

also the silviculture operations and the hunting club that 

makes it much easier, more efficient, and better directed to - -  

by one company that understands all the aspects of that land 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Tor them to operate these facilities rather than someone else 

2oming in not understanding all the activities and all the 

features that are on that property. That's it. 

MR. DETERDING: Commissioner, we request that his 

3irect testimony be inserted in the record as though read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, it shall be 

30 inserted. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF CHARLES W. DRAKE, P.G. 

State your name and address. 

Charles W. Drake, P.G., Hartman & Associates, Inc., 201 E. 

Pine Street, Orlando, Florida 32801. 

Mr. Drake, are you a registered professional geologist in 

the State of Florida? 

Yes. My registration number is 00037. 

Mr. Drake, what is your area of specialty in your practice? 

I specialize primarily in hydrogeology and related issues 

that involve water supply. 

What is hydrogeology? 

It is the science that studies the occurrence and movement 

of groundwater and aspects of surface water. 

Have you ever been qualified as an expert witness in water 

supply and hydrogeological issues? 

Yes, I have on several occasions over the past 18 years. 

In what areas are you going to provide testimony in this 

matter ? 

In water supply and hydrogeology associated with the 

application of Farmton Water Resources, LLC, for the Florida 

Public Service Commission original water certificate. 

Was the application for certificate and supporting financial 

engineering and technical information prepared by your firm? 

Yes, our firm prepared the engineering, accounting, 

hydrogeological and utility management aspects of the 

application on behalf of our client, Farmton Water 

- 1- 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF CHARLES W. DRAKE, P.G. 

Resources, LLC, which were included in Composite Exhibit 

“GCH- 1” . 

Was the application submitted to the Public Service 

Commission? 

Yes, this has been presented as Exhibit GCH-1. 

Are the matters contained in the application and supporting 

reports true and accurate representations to the Florida 

Public Service Commission in your opinion? 

Yes, they are. 

Have you had occasion to review the water use permitting 

issues in this region? 

Yes. The St. Johns River Water Management District has 

issued reports on the resources of Volusia and Brevard 

counties, and there appears to be, in their opinion, a 

limitation on the available groundwater supplies in this 

region of existing water utilities. 

Does Farmton have the technical ability to serve the 

requested territory? 

Yes, as provided in the application and supporting 

documents. 

Does Farmton have, or are they implementing, sufficient 

water withdrawal capacity to serve the requested territory? 

Yes, based upon our analysis, which is reflected in the 

application and supporting documents. Farmton has the 

existing capacity to serve all of the needs for existing 

CWD/sma/Ol.0036.003/corresp/Direct Testimony-cwd 
- 2 -  
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF CHARLES W. DRAKE, P.G. 

services and they are in the best position to be able to 

obtain the water needed for the other proposed services. 

Does Farmton Water Resources, LLC have continued use of the 

land upon which the utility facilities are or will be 

located? 

Yes they do, and the Company provided that information to 

the FPSC as part of the application. 

Who is providing the financial testimony in this case? 

Ms. Tara L. Hollis, C.P.A. 

Are you expecting to provide rebuttal testimony? 

To the extent that it is needed, yes. 

Do you have a resume? 

Yes, that is attached as Exhibit CWD-1. 

Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 

Yes. 

- 3 -  
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MR. DETERDING: And we tender the witness for cross 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Mr. Knox. Okay. 

Mr. McNamara. 

MR. McNAMARA: Thank you, Commissioner. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Mr. Drake, I'd like to start off just talking a 

little bit about the proposed retail service that you've talk 

about in your direct testimony that Farmton Water Resources i 

intending to provide. For retail service, isn't it true that 

Farmton is proposing to use only a series of seven to eight 

local wells for such service? 

A For the currently known existing and proposed 

service, yes, that excludes any future use. 

Q But as far as what they are applying for here today 

it includes only those seven to eight wells; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And these seven to eight wells are spread out over 

the approximately 50,000 acre service area; correct? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And the largest of these wells is a four-inch well; 

correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And the smallest of the wells, as I understand it, 

a one-and-a-half-inch well; correct? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A I believe so. 

MR. KNOX: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. Could we get the 

ditness to lift his microphone, so we can hear him down here? 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Yes, it is. 

BY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Isn't it true that one of the local governmental 

sntities, whether it be the counties or local city, could put 

in the same type of local wells with local treatment that 

Farmton proposes to provide for retail service? 

A Yes, they could. But the actual physical location is 

oest directed by the landowner, so it wouldn't interfere with 

the mitigation banks that are on the property, the wetlands 

that are out there, the silviculture operations. The siting of 

that well and its operation would be best directed by the 

landowner. 

Q But isn't it true that the landowner could direct 

those things through an agreement with one of the local 

governmental entities to put in a well as a local system? 

A If they could reach that agreement, yes. But in many 

clases the landowner and utility don't come to that agreement 

because of their perspectives on that water supply issue. 

Q But isn't it true in this particular situation that 

Farmton has never asked any of the local governments to come in 

and provide such service? 

A To my knowledge, they haven't. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q They have not? 

A To my knowledge, they have not. 

Q As we sit here today, you as an expert for Farmton 

Water Resources are not aware of any plans to develop 

residences in the proposed service area; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And you're not aware of any plans for further 

commercial development in the proposed service area; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Let's talk a little bit about bulk water. As we sit 

here today, you're not aware of any agreements for Farmton 

Water Resources to provide bulk water to any other entity; is 

that correct? 

A That's correct, no agreements. 

Q And in the past there have been some discussions with 

the City of Titusville and possibly with WAV, which is the 

Water Authority of Volusia; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q But as far as you know, there have been no 

,discussions between Farmton Water Resources and any 

nongovernmental entity to provide bulk water services; correct? 

A That I know of. I don't know of any others besides 

those two you just mentioned. 

Q With respect to the fire protection wells that are to 

be provided pursuant to the application, isn't it true that 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

148 

xrrently the Miami Corporation has two fire protection wells 

3n its property? 

A Yes. 

Q And the application proposes that Farmton Water 

Resources would add ten additional fire protection wells; 

correct? 

A 

Q 

Yes , sir. 

Is there anything in the PSC regulations or statutes 

in ten that would prohibit the Miami Corporation from putting 

additional fire protection wells to serve itself? 

A I'm not familiar with all the PSC regulation 

think it was mentioned earlier, because these are each 

individual activities, they each have an impact on the 

activities on the property, it makes sense to have all 

But I 

these 

activities coordinated in one fashion by one - -  or by the 

landowner and have those activities regulated. 

Q But if the Miami Corporation were to choose to put in 

additional fire protection wells for itself on its own property 

and put in its own private fire protection wells, nothing would 

stop it from doing that, would it? 

A Only unless they - -  you know, they trip certain water 

management district thresholds, and they couldn't get a permit 

by the water management district. 

Q But other than that. there would be nothing else to 

prohibit it? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q 

None that I know of. 

Is there anyone that's currently employed by Farmton 

as an employee that has experience in providing a water supply 

as an investor-owned utility? 

A I don't know. 

Q Let's talk a little bit about the proposed retail 

service for the Miami Tract Hunt Club. There were two wells at 

two campsites that existed prior to this application being 

filed; correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q At the time the application was filed, did you know 

the size of those wells? 

A I think they were either one-and-a-half- or two-inch 

wells. 

Q And were those wells that were operated with a hand 

pitcher pump? 

A I believe so, yes. 

Q There's no electricity at these campsites, is there? 

A Currently not. But there are plans to run 

electricity back there or to have the pumps operated by solar 

power. 

Q Is there a plan to run electricity to all four 

campsites? 

A Not at this time. We're looking into - -  and solar 

power can be used to operate the pumps. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A 

Q Is there any reference in the PSC application to the 

l s e  of solar power? 

I don't believe so. 

Q Prior to preparing the application in this case, you 

did not conduct any study to determine how many people use the 

zampsites; correct? 

A I did not. 

Q And you were the primary person at Hartman & 

Associates working on this project; correct? 

A Well, that second part is correct. I was the 

primary - -  or am the primary person. Talking with 

Mr. Underhill, each camp, I think, can have up to 25 families 

per campsite, if I remember the number correctly. So there 

were some discussions about how many people could potentially 

be at each - -  how many families could be at each campsite. So 

in that respect, yes. We were estimating water use based on 

that. 

Q And those discussions were there could be 25 families 

at each of the four campsites? 

A There may have been more, but I think that's about 

right. 

Q You believe it was 25 at each of the four campsites? 

A I think we discussed that in the - -  the total number 

of families that have a lease on the property is in the 

application and our engineering report. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q In preparing your opinions in this case, you did not 

:onduct any study of the actual water usage by the Miami Tract 

lunt Club; isn't that correct? 

A We don't have any records of how much water has been 

ised historically. 

Q You did not install any meters on their existing 

lrells to determine how much water they were using; correct? 

A No, we didn't. 

Q You did not personally conduct any interviews of the 

Yliami Tract Hunt Club representatives to determine how much 

uater they were using; correct? 

A That's correct. My discussions were mostly with 

4r. Underhill. 

Q I couldn't hear the last part of your - -  

A My discussions were mostly with Mr. Underhill. 

Q And did he give you any specific references as to how 

nuch water the Miami Tract Hunt Club was using from the two 

?xisting wells? 

A No, just the number of people. 

Q You testified in your deposition that for the flows 

mticipated at the campsites, a five-eighths-inch meter would 

3e sufficient. Do you recall that? 

A I believe it was five-eighths by three-quarters is 

slrhat we had specified in the engineering report. 

Q And that was what you had specified for the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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I believe so. 

Q And you believe that would be sufficient for the 

flows that were anticipated? 

A I believe so. 

Q Let's talk a little bit about the Miami Corporation 

ieadquarters. Are you familiar with those headquarters? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q And those are located within the proposed service 

irea? 

Q 

rou said 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

A Yes. 

Q And the headquarters are made up of a small single 

family house; correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And there's an adjacent residence; correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And those are currently served by one well? 

I believe just one well, yes. 

Do you know the size of that well? 

I believe that's a four-inch well. 

Do you know what size it is? I couldn't hear what 

A four-inch well. 

A four-inch well. 

Is there a meter on that well? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A 

Q 

No, sir, not that I know of. 

Did you do any study of the amount of water 

nistorically used at the Miami Corporation headquarters? 

A No, sir, I didn't. 

Q And you did not install any meter to determine what 

the amount of water being used was? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q With respect to the Clark Cattlehouse, is there 

clurrently a well there as well? 

Yes, there's a smaller diameter well at the Clark A 

Jattlehouse. 

Q What is the size of that well? 

A It's in the one-and-a-half-inch to two-inch range, I 

Delieve. 

Q Is it fair to say you don't know what the historical 

dater usage was there? 

A That s correct. 

Q 

Q And you did not do any study to try to determine the 

2istorical water usage? 

A No, I didn't. 

Did not install any meter to determine how much water 

das used? 

A 

Q 

No, sir. 

I'm going to ask you, if you would, to take a look at 

che large map that was prepared by Mr. Hartman that is next to 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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rou. And there are some wells proposed for a first phase of 

iulk service. Can you identify for me where those are located? 

Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We have a portable microphone 

;hat you may wish to utilize. 

THE WITNESS: The first phase of the bulk water 

supply wells would run along in this direction from southeast 

10 northwest, and then Phase I1 to the southwest. 

3Y MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Are those, generally speaking, in the vicinity of the 

7lorida East Coast Railroad? 

A Yes, sir, the Phase I wells that run southeast to 

iorthwest are. 

Q Are you familiar with the City of Titusville's 

:onsumptive use application for wells along the Florida East 

loast right-of-way? 

A Yes, sir, I am. 

Q 

A 

irea. 

Q 

Are these generally in the same location? 

Yes, the Phase I wells are generally in that same 

And your Phase I well, have you identified exact 

legal description locations for where you propose to put those 

wells? 

A I don't think we identified a latitude and longitude 

for those first phase wells. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Do you have an opinion as to whether those wells will 

potentially interfere with the City of Titusville's wells 

should its consumptive use permit be granted? 

A They could if those wells are permitted, but as far 

as I know now those wells are still be evaluated. Titusville's 

application is still being evaluated by the water management 

district. And this wouldn't - -  we wouldn't supersede their use 

or they supersede ours necessarily. 

Q You were the project manager on this project for your 

firm; is that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Can you tell me how much your firm has been paid for 

handling this PSC application for Farmton Water Resources? 

A It's just over $200,000. 

Q Do you recall what your initial estimate was to 

provide these services for Farmton Water Resources? 

A You probably have that letter from our files. I'm 

thinking the estimate - -  the first estimate without the 

hearings that we're part of now was in the $50,000 to $75,000 

range to just prepare the application and submit it to the PSC, 

but it did not - -  at that time did not include the proceeding 

we're in today. 

Q When were you initially retained to prepare the 

application? 

A I believe it was in the - -  I can't remember if it was 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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che early or - -  I think it was the early part of 2001. 

Q Do you know when the City of Titusville applied for 

its consumptive use application for the wells along the Florida 

Zast Coast Railroad right-of-way? 

A It was in the year 2000 or 2001, I believe. 

MR. McNAMARA: Thank you. That's all I have for now 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Knox. 

MR. KNOX: I have no questions for this witness. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Mr. Bosch. 

MR. BOSCH: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Staff. 

MS. FLEMING: We have no questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioner. 

Redirect. 

MR. DETERDING: Just a few. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. DETERDING: 

Q Mr. Drake, you were asked about the number of people 

3r the number of sites at the hunt club campsites. Who's in 

che best position to provide that type of information 

zoncerning the hunt clubs? 

A Mr. Underhill is. 

Q Okay. Who is the person who is in the best position 

;o describe the size of the metering systems proposed for each 

2f the sites, service sites? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A I couldn't understand the question. Could you 

repeat that? 

Q Who is in the best position to describe and outline 

the size of the various metering systems proposed by Farmton 

for the different customers? 

A Mr. Hartman is the engineer and he would be the best 

to do that. 

MR. DETERDING: That's all I have. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Very well. Thank you, 

Mr. Drake. 

Mr. Deterding, you may call your next witness. 

MR. DETERDING: We call Earl Underhill. 

EARL M. UNDERHILL 

was called as a witness on behalf of Farmton Water Resources, 

LLC and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

BY MR. : 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

32764. 

Q 

A 

Q 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

DETERDING: 

Mr. Underhill, have you been sworn? 

Yes, sir, I have. 

Please state your name and employment address. 

Earl M. Underhill, 1625 Maytown Road, Osteen, Florida 

And are you employed by Farmton? 

Yes, I am. 

And in what capacity? 
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I'm the vice president for operations. 

Did you prepare testimony in conjunction with my 

Iffice labeled prefiled direct testimony of Earl Underhill? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q And that consists of ten pages? 

A If you say so. 

Q Make sure. 

A Yes, ten pages. 

Q If I ask you those same questions here today, would 

Tour answers be the same? 

Yes, they would. 

Do you have any corrections to make to that 

A 

Q 

zestimony? 

A Yes, I do. I have two corrections. The first one 

ias to do with the length of the procedure that we're in. I 

stated that I had been with Miami Corporation for 24 years, 

it's now been 25 years. 

And the second one is on Page 3, Line 6, where it 

liscusses the Volusian Water Alliance transitioning to a new 

3rganization. That organization has since been formed. It's 

:he Water Authority of Volusia that has been discussed here. 

It has new powers to implement the plans of the Volusian Water 

Ylliance. So it's distinctly different from the Volusian Water 

Uliance. It is also different in that agriculture and private 

Landowners are not permitted to be participants in the planning 
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process of the water resources in Volusia County. So that's an 

important difference. 

Q Okay. You had no exhibits to your direct testimony; 

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Could you please provide the Commission with a 

summary of your direct testimony? 

A Yes, I will. The landowner, being Miami Corporation, 

excuse has long felt that the operation on Farmton needed to - -  

me, operation of the numerous water facilities, wells, and 

resources on Farmton needed to be centralized into a separate 

entity. In order to properly plan for the future needs and 

provide water not only to our lands but to other properties 

that may wish to obtain water from these lands, we felt it was 

best to operate a regulated utility under the scrutiny of the 

Public Service Commission for the good of all current and 

future customers within that territory and those who might seek 

bulk water service for use outside the territory. 

Because of our unique relationship with the 

landowner, being Miami Corporation, and because there are no 

other utilities operating within the immediate area, we believe 

that we are by far best able to manage the water resource and 

provide water service when needed within the territory. 

Are there needs for service within the territory? 

Yes, there's significant needs, needs at my office. We have 
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five people who work out of that office on a daily basis. We 

have a caretaker who lives there with a significant other. The 

logging crews constantly are coming in, getting water from that 

site, and we have the Miami Tract Hunt Club. Membership in 

that hunt club consists of 261 member families. A member 

family is the primary member, a spouse, and children age 21 and 

under. 

Miami Tract Hunt Club came to me some time ago and 

asked that we assist them in providing water services at the 

check stations and at the campgrounds. The letter that was 

included in the application specifically spoke to the 

campsites. And we have provided water at two of the campsites. 

Secondly, we have a need for continuing fire 

protection services throughout Farmton and located in the 

proposed territory. And finally, it appears that there's a 

growing need for bulk water service in the area. 

What are our future needs? I would say to you that 

they're really unknown, but I would also say to you that we at 

the current time do not have any immediate needs or any 

immediate plans for development. Granted, there are enclaves 

that we totally surround, have numerous residences that may and 

actually have come to me since this application was filed 

asking if they could be served by Farmton Water Resources. So 

it's certainly conceivable to me that some of these would 

require central water services in the future, and in the 
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ittitude that we generally try to do working with our 

ieighbors, we would certainly attempt to meet those needs. 

Miami Corporation has owned this land since 1925. 

Chey have been good stewards. They have been stewards of the 

ximber; they have been stewards of the wildlife; the have been 

stewards of the water. And they would like to continue to be 

3ood stewards of this land. However, in order to properly plan 

Tor our future and to properly plan this entire tract, we 

ielieve that setting up a utility with us as the service 

?rovider, Farmton as the service provider, is the first logical 

step, and that's why we're here today. Thank you. 

MR. DETERDING: Commissioner, I request that 

4r. Underhill's testimony be inserted in the record as though 

read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

50 inserted. 

Without objection, it shall be 
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Q. 

A. 

(1. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

FARMTON WATER RESOURCES, LLC 

DOCKET NO. 021256-WU 

APPLICATION FOR ORIGINAL WATER CERTIFICATE 

IN VOLUSIA AND BREVARD COUNTIES 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF EARL M. UNDERHILL 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Earl M. Underhill. My business address is 

1625 Maytown Road, Osteen, Florida 32764. 

Briefly state your educational background and experience. 

I have a Bachelor’s Degree from Purdue University in 

Forestry. Since graduation and after four years of 

active service with the U.S. Navy thereafter, I have been 

employed in the field of forestry and silviculture on a 

continuous basis, since 1970. The last &years of which 

I have been employed by the Miami Corporation as director 

of operations of the Farmton property. 

Can you provide us with some information concerning your 

background as it relates to operation and management of 

water resources and facilities? 

In addition to my general duties as Director of 

silviculture operations for approximately 24 years, in 

which I have managed substantial water resources for 

conservation and silviculture purposes, I have been 

actively involved in service on several committees and 
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other groups that dealt primarily with water related 

issues. 

During the mid 1980's, I served on the Florida Forestry 

Association's Liaison Committee to the St. Johns River 

Water Management District to develop the first 

silviculture regulations to protect water resources, 

which are now part of the Environmental Regulatory Policy 

Rule. 

From the early 1980's through 2003, I served on the 

Florida Forestry Association's Environmental Committee, 

which drafted and continues to update statewide Best 

Management Practices (BMP's) for silviculture, designed 

to protect surface water quality. 

During the late 1980's, I helped to develop Volusia 

County's Environmental Rules, including tree protection, 

storm water, wetlands, well head protection, and other 

regulations pertaining to water resources, protection of 

those resources, and water conservation. 

From 1992 through 1998, I served as a member of the 

Endangered and Natural Resources Advisory Committee 

(ENRAC), a committee formed by the Volusia County Council 

to review and recommend modifications to all 

environmental laws. 

From 1996 through the present, I have served as the 

agricultural representative to the Volusia Water 
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Q .  

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Alliance. This group developed plans for responsible 

well field withdrawals from the Sole Source Volusian 

Aquifer, examines alternative water sources, and promotes 

countywide conservation consistent with St. Johns River 

Water Management District plans. It is currently 

transitioning to a new organization, with powers to 

implement alternative water source development. 

Are you the person who will primarily oversee the 

operation of Farmton Water Resources, LLC as a 

certificated Utility? 

Yes I am. I will of course enlist the services of 

additional persons with experience in the operation and 

maintenance of the on-site systems as needed, to assist 

me in that regard. We have already secured the services 

of engineers, attorneys and regulatory consultants for 

preparation of our application and to assist with design, 

planning and set up of the Utility. 

Why did Farmton Water Resources, LLC decide to undertake 

certification of its water utility operations by the PSC? 

The landowner has long felt that the operation of the 

numerous water facilities, wells and resources on the 

Farmton property needed to be centralized into a separate 

entity, for the purposes of meeting all the water supply 

needs within such lands. In order to properly plan for 

future needs and to provide water to not only our own 
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lands, but to other properties that may wish to obtain 

water from those lands, we felt that it was best to 

operate a regulated Utility under the scrutiny of the 

Public Service Commission, for the good of all current 

and future customers within that territory and those who 

might seek bulk service for use outside that territory. 

We were also concerned about proper management and use of 

the water resources, to ensure the most efficient and 

economical provision of water, to those in need of that 

resource. Because of our relationship with the landowner 

and because there are no other utilities operating within 

the area, we believe we are by far the best able to 

manage the water resources and provide water service as 

and when needed within the territory, and to utilize 

these lands, to the extent they are utilized, for the 

purposes of providing bulk water services to those 

outside the territory. Any other proposed water source 

would not only have to duplicate the existing facilities 

operated by Farmton Water Resources, LLC to provide 

service within the territory, but would have to obtain 

some ownership interest in specific properties in order 

to extract water for off-site use within the Miami 

Corporation owned properties. This is inefficient and 

also much more likely to be damaging to the water 

resource. Farmton has an arrangement with the related 
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landowner, to allow it to place wells in appropriate 

locations, and to move those wells as and when needed, in 

order to ensure proper management of the resource for the 

benefit of not only the persons needing water service on 

the property, but those needing such service outside the 

property. 

Q. Is there a need for service within the proposed 

territory? 

A. Yes. There are significant needs that are already 

existing. First, there is the existing residential and 

general service potable water service needs in several 

places throughout the territory. Among these are the 

landowner’s offices, residences, hunting camps and those 

leased by others. Some of these hunting camps alone 

involve use by over 260 families. They have specifically 

asked us to provide service to them and understand that 

our rates and charges will be established and regulated 

by the Florida Public Service Commission. We intend to 

provide that service to those hunting camp families, as 

part of our overall potable water service. 

Secondly, we have existing need for fire protection 

services utilizing the wells located throughout the 

Farmton Water Resources, LLC proposed territory. 

Finally, there is apparently a growing need for bulk raw 

water services from in and around our area, to the 
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coastal areas east of us. As noted above, we are in the 

best position to provide that service at a reasonable 

rate, regulated by the PSC, and can manage that resource 

in the most efficient, economic and environmentally safe 

manner. 

(2. What about future needs? 

A. It is unclear what future needs will be within the 

territory. It is apparent that the bulk raw water will 

increase and perhaps as urban areas approach us, there is 

likely to be transition from the silviculture operations 

and perhaps toward residential, commercial and industrial 

development of properties. However, I want to make it 

clear that there are absolutely no current plans by the 

landowner for further development within the service 

territory proposed for same by Farmton Water Resources, 

LLC and as such, no plans for substantial changes in the 

number of persons receiving potable water service. 

However, with that said, there are places in and 

surrounded by the proposed territory that may, in the 

near future, require or request potable water service. 

There are enclaves of residences which are surrounded by 

the proposed service territory that currently are either 

on individual or group wells. It is certainly 

conceivable to me that some of these will require central 

water service in the future, and we will be glad to work 
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with them to extend our territory to provide service to 

them and we can assist them in that regard. 

There is also the potential for development within the 

Miami Corporation properties, though no plans are even in 

the most preliminary of stages for such development. 

While the landowner is in a constant process of 

evaluating the uses for its property, nothing is 

currently in the works. However, in order to properly 

plan for the future, we believe setting up a utility as 

the service provider within the area, is the first 

logical step. Without the establishment of that utility, 

service to the area when those needs arise would not only 

be less efficient and ultimately more costly to the 

customers, it would fragment the water resource 

management for the water demands within the area. 

That is basically why we are seeking this water 

certificate, to allow for the appropriate oversight by 

the PSC and planning by the Utility for provision of 

water services to all those in need of such services 

within the proposed territory who could reasonably 

provide such services, much less as efficiently as 

Farmton Water Resources, LLC can. 

Q. Are the services proposed by you available from any other 

entity? 

A. No. There are no other entities within the proposed 
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territory, and there are none even close to the proposed 

territory. An attempt to come in and provide those 

services currently needed, would obviously be a complete 

duplication of existing facilities operated by Farmton 

Water Resources, LLC and would thus be not only 

duplicative, but wholly inefficient. 

Q. Does Farmton Water Resources, LLC have the technical 

ability to provide the service proposed in its 

Application? 

A. Yes, in addition to my extensive experience in managing 

water resources and knowledge of those issues, we have 

already enlisted the services of Hartman & Associates as 

consulting engineers and other regulatory experts to 

assist us in operating the Utility. The same personnel 

who have operated the water facilities for many years in 

the past, will continue to operate those in the future 

simply working for the Utility instead of the landowner. 

To the extent we need to add additional people, we will 

employ competent, experienced persons in utility areas 

for those purposes. As the need for various services 

within the area grows, we will enlist additional 

experienced and knowledgeable people as and when needed. 

Q. Does Farmton Water Resources, LLC have the financial 

ability to provide the service proposed in its 

Application? 
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A. Yes, Farmton Water Resources, LLC is a subsidiary of 

Farmton Management, LLC.  We provided as part of our 

Application as Exhibit "E" a financial statement for that 

entity showing that it has ample resources to meet the 

immediate needs for Utility expansion. Those funds will 

be provided either in the form of debt or equity to the 

Utility from the parent company. The parent company has 

pledged to provide for any and all capital needs of the 

Utility. It should be noted that we have no expectation 

of any need for capital improvements, as there is no 

anticipated development of any significance within the 

proposed service territory in any of the services 

provided. The only area where there is the possibility 

of some significant need for capital expenditure, is in 

the area of bulk raw water services. Under the proposed 

Service Availability Policy, substantial amounts of money 

would have to be paid by the proposed customer, which 

would assist us in constructing those facilities. 

Whatever additional capital needs exist for those 

facilities can easily be met by the Utility based upon 

funding provided by its parent company. 

Based upon all this, the Utility does not have any 

immediate substantial capital needs, however, to the 

extent there are any the parent company has pledged to 

provide for all such capital needs as and when needed and 
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MR. DETERDING: And we tender the witness for cross. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Knox. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. K N O X :  

Q Mr. Underhill, on Page 4 of your direct testimony, 

you make the statement that, "We believe we are by far the best 

2ble to manage the water resources and provide water service as 

m d  when needed within the territory.'' Do you remember that 

statement? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Let me ask you a few questions about that. In 

Brevard County, at least in the portion of the certificated 

2rea that you're trying to obtain in Brevard County, have you 

2pproached the County Commission to either seek an amendment to 

the comprehensive plan that will allow Farmton to provide 

service there? 

A Not at this time. We have not. We felt that 

this - -  our first venue was to stop here. 

Q Okay. Have you approached the County Commission 

sitting as the district board under the Ordinance 03-032 to 

seek their consent to build facilities for a water system in 

this area? 

A No, we have not. 

Q Okay. That being the case, as we sit here today, you 

don't know whether or not you would be able under that 
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A 

ordinance to construct any facilities for a water system in 

that area, do you? 

I guess I'm assuming that this was the first place 

that we needed to stop en route a variety of requests. 

Q Well, try to answer my question. Sitting here today, 

you don't know whether or not you would be able to build any 

water system facilities in this particular area, do you? 

MR. DETERDING: Commissioner, I want to object. He's 

asking Mr. Underhill to draw a legal conclusion about the 

effect of the county's ordinance versus the Public Service 

Commission's jurisdiction, and I don't think Mr. Underhill has 

been offered as an expert in those kind of legal questions. 

And frankly, I think that is a very difficult question for 

anyone to answer even those who are lawyers. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: There's been an objection. Do 

you care to respond? 

MR. KNOX: Yes. My question goes to the ability of 

Farmton to provide water service. And Mr. Underhill has to 

know whether or not he has that ability based upon his ability 

to construct or not construct facilities. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I'm going to allow the question 

with the understanding that the witness is not an attorney, is 

not providing a legal opinion, but to the extent that the 

question has bearing on his understanding of the company's 

plans and how that meshes with the various jurisdictions 
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involved, he may express that. 

THE WITNESS: If I understand you correctly, do we 

have the physical ability to do such? When we drilled the well 

in Brevard County, we went to Brevard County, we got the permit 

and had the permit in place. So, yes, I would say we do have 

the ability. 

BY MR. KNOX: 

Q Okay. When did you get that permit? 

A Sometime this past winter. 

Q Okay. I'm not sure you answered my question though. 

If you haven't gone to the County Commission to seek consent t 

provide - -  or to build facilities that you're contemplating in 

this application, you don't know today whether or not the 

County Commission would grant that consent, do you? 

A 

Q 

A 

I thought your question was, did we have the ability. 

Try to answer the question I j u s t  asked. 

Would you repeat that, sir? 

Q Sure. As you sit today, you don't know whether or 

not the County Commission would grant you permission to build 

the water facilities you're planning to build in this location, 

do you? 

A That's correct. 

Q That being the case, you don't know whether Farmton 

has the actual ability to provide water service in the future, 

do you? 
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A You're saying that we do not have the ability. 

Q No. I ' m  asking whether you think today, as you sit 

here, you know that you have the ability. 

MR. DETERDING: And again, he's asking a question 

about their legal ability versus their technical or physical 

ability to do these things, so he's drawing - -  he's asking for 

a legal conclusion. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And I still will allow the 

question based upon the previous ruling. 

THE WITNESS: We have the physical ability. Do we 

have the legal the ability? I'm not capable of answering that 

quest ion. 

BY MR. KNOX: 

Q Okay. Mr. Underhill, is there a portable microphone 

up there somewhere that you could take with you? 

A Yes, I believe there is. 

Q If you could, could you approach the big map that's 

standing to your right? 

A Yes. 

Q Would you point out the area that Farmton has applied 

for the certificated area in? 

A It's the area in yellow. 

Q Okay. Now, if you look at that map, there's an area 

between 1-95 and the yellow area you just pointed to. Do you 

see that? 
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A You're talking about along here? 

Q Yes. That's a green area. Does Miami Corporation 

iwn that property? 

A No, Miami does not. 

Q Does any subsidiary of Miami Corporation own that 

iroperty? 

A No. 

Q Do you know how far that property is to the 

?armton - -  how far it is between the - -  excuse me, let me 

restate that. 

Do you know how far it is between the Miami 

'orporation property, which is identified in yellow, and 

1-95 from that location? 

A Yes. In general, it's between one and a half to 

chree miles. 

Q Okay. Thank you. That's all I need you up there 

for. 

A Okay. 

Q NOW, Mr. Underhill, is it fair to say that one of the 

reasons that you're seeking to obtain a certificated area here 

is because sometime in the future it's possible Miami 

Corporation may decide to allow residential or commercial 

development of its property? 

A Anything is possible in the future. 

Q Okay. But as we sit here today, you don't know of 
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iny such plans on the boards? 

A We do not have immediate plans, that's correct. 

MR. KNOX: Okay. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. McNamara. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Hello, Mr. Underhill. My name is Pat McNamara; I 

represent the City of Titusville. We met a few weeks ago at 

jour deposition. 

A Sure. Hi. 

Q On Page 5 of your prefiled testimony, Lines 12 

Ihrough 15, you made the following statement - -  and excuse me, 

[Ill start on Line 9. "There are significant needs that are 

3lready existing. First, there is the existing residential and 

general service potable water service needs in several places 

zhroughout the territory. Among these are the landowner's 

3ffices, residences, hunting camps, and those leased by 

2thers. I' 

I'd like to talk a little bit about each of these 

?ireas that you mention in your prefiled testimony. First, as 

to the landowner's offices, isn't it true that the landowner's 

3ffices is one single family home located on the Miami 

Zorporation property; correct? 

A Yes, that's correct, and the associated buildings. 

Q And the associated buildings, can you describe those 
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€or me? 

A We've got about a 60- by 100-foot shed, equipment 

shed, which is our shop. We've got another large pole barn, 

?robably 50 by 120 feet. We have an oil barn. We have 

3ssociated bathrooms. We have our fuel facility there which 

is - -  consists of a fuel farm for both gasoline and off-road 

jiesel. We have my office and we have the adjoining 

zaretaker's house. 

Q And your office is in the single family home that we 

2lready discussed; correct? 

A Yes, that's correct. 

Q And as I understand it, there are a total of five 

9eople who work out of the office building; is that correct? 

A Full time, that's correct. 

(1 And you currently have no plans for expansion of the 

Yiami Corporation office building; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And this office building is served by one existing 

dell that is currently owned by the Miami Corporation? 

A That's correct. 

Q And your plan is to lease that well to Farmton Water 

Resources? 

A That's correct, as part of the overall package. 

Q So you'll lease this well from the Miami Corporation 

to Farmton Water Resources, and then pay retail service rates 
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rom purchasing water back from that same well? 

A As I understand it, yes. 

How long has that well been in operation? Q 

A That well was dug some 10 to 12 years ago. 

Q Is the water supply from that well sufficient in 

.erms of quantity for your needs? 

A Most of the time. There are times when we have fire 

ieeds, and we have been unable to meet the fire needs from that 

Jell. In other words, without bringing a tanker and it just 

ioes not have the capacity or the capability with the pump to 

till up the tanker in an efficient method. 

Q I'd like to just set aside fire service needs for a 

ninute because I'll cover that separately. But is that well 

;ufficient for the retail service needs currently of the Miami 

'orporation headquarters? 

A Yes. But I guess my point is that fire is part of 

;he needs there. As far as the rest of the needs, yes, it 

neets the rest of the needs. Understand that when a logger 

)rings equipment in to clean it off at times, they t o o  are 

~oing to be posed with the same problem of a limited water 

supply. In other words, we support the loggers on the 

?roperty, and they're constantly coming in and requiring water. 

Q Well, currently is there any plan in the proposed 

3pplication for expanding the water facilities at the Miami 

'orporation headquarters? 
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A Not at this time. 

Q You talked in your prefiled testimony about 

Yesidences on the property. Isn't it true there are only two 

Tesidences, one being at the Miami Corporation headquarters and 

)ne being at the - -  one of the check stations where there's a 

:railer; is that correct? 

A Well, there's a third residence, the Clark 

'attlehouse. So there are three residences. 

Q The Clark Cattlehouse is not used as a residence full 

Lime; correct? 

A Not at the moment, but one of my employees recently 

tas living there with his family. 

Q But at the moment it's currently used for storage for 

;he Clark Cattle Company? 

A No. They spend the night in there. They use that as 

I retreat for themselves. They set up to spend time in there. 

Q Other than those three residences that we talked 

ibout, there are no other residences on the Miami Corporation 

iroperty; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q The residence that is adjacent to the Miami 

'orporation headquarters, that is served by the same well that 

de already discussed that serves the Miami Corporation 

ieadquarters? 

A Yes, it is. 
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Q And no plans to add an additional well for the 

.esidence; correct? 

A No, there are not at this point. 

Q Isn't it true that ultimately Farmton Water Resources 

Jould have under the current application three customers, one 

Ieing the Miami Tract Hunt Club, one being the Miami 

lorporation, and one being the Clark Cattle station? 

A Yes, except that we've had discussions, as you well 

mow, with the City of Titusville when we started this, and we 

2ntered into this in good faith that we could supply a need 

vith the City of Titusville. That's what we thought we were 

fulfilling when we made our application. 

Q But currently you have no contracts with the City of 

Citusville to provide bulk water; correct? 

A No, we do not. We have - -  and our door is open if 

;hey care to contact us. 

Q And those discussions are not ongoing at this time; 

Zorrect? 

A They have hit a stalemate. 

Q And with regard to the City of Titusville, it is a 

jovernmental entity; correct? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And isn't it your understanding that to provide bulk 

dater service to a governmental entity that would be exempt 

from PSC regulation? 
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That's what I've heard here today, yes. 

During your deposition, you were asked quite a few 

questions about the Miami Tract Hunt Club, and I'd like to j u s t  

go over some of those things briefly with you here today. I'm 

going to provide you with a copy of what I'll mark as the next 

exhibit. 

MR. McNAMARA: And I believe, according to my 

records, the next one would be Number 39; is that correct, 

Commissioner? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That is correct. 

MR. McNAMARA: Excuse me. I've chosen the wrong 

document. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Are we going to eventually need 

this too, or do you need it back? 

MR. McNAMARA: I will take that one back. I 

apologize. 

(Exhibit 39 marked for identification.) 

BY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Mr. Underhill, we've handed you what's been marked as 

Exhibit Number 39, and this was also an Exhibit Number 1 in 

your deposition. 

A Sure. 

Q Is this a copy of the hunting lease between the Miami 

Corporation and the Miami Tract Hunt Club? 

A Yes, it is. 
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And is this a true and accurate copy of the lease? 

Yes, it is. 

Q As I understand it, the lease began in April of 

2001; correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And the lease expires on May 15th of 2006; is that 

zorrect? 

A That's correct. 

Q And currently there has been no agreement reached to 

zxtend this lease beyond May of 2006; correct? 

A There's been nothing in writing, that's correct. 

rhere have been discussions with Mr. Thomas and myself about an 

2xtension. 

Q But currently as far as a legally binding extension, 

there's nothing in effect; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q If you look at Paragraph 14, isn't it true that the 

lease limits the Miami Tract Hunt Club to 261 members? 

A That is correct, yes. 

Q And attached to the lease is Exhibit B, the Miami 

Tract Hunt Club rules; is that correct? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And those rules provide for restrictions of the Miami 

Tract Hunt Club as to what months they can use the land; 

correct? 
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A It depends on whether or not this is a current 

nodification. Can you point me to what rule that is? 

Q Just one moment. If you look at Rule Number 12. 

A Okay. That is correct. However, in the spirit of 

uorking with the hunt club, they have agreed to provide us and 

111 the landowners in the Osteen area with assistance by 

nanning the fire tower that the state has been short funded on. 

So by manning the fire tower one day in the period between 

2pril 30th and September lst, they are then given the right and 

Ibility to come on our lands for the entire summer. 

Q Currently how many trailers or tents are located on 

the campsites if we were to go out there today? 

A Currently there should be zero. 

Q Zero? 

A That's right. 

Q Would the same have been true if we had been out 

there last weekend? 

A Yes, it would have. 

Q Currently at the locations of the campsites, there is 

no electricity provided; correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q And you anticipate providing power for any wells by 

use of either some type of a fuel generator or a solar power; 

correct? 

A Or if we need to, we'll bring in electricity. One of 
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;he campsites is not too far from the Maytown Road. 

Q And currently there are two campsites that have 

uells; is that true? 

A That is correct. 

Q And those two wells are both currently operated with 

land-operated pitcher pumps; true? 

A That's correct. That was an interim step in getting 

:he wells to that point and we anticipate moving ahead. 

Q And two of the campsites have had service prior to 

;he recent installation of wells. Two of the campsites have 

nad wells in the past is my understanding; is that true? 

A You're talking about a different kind of well. 

You're talking about a shallow well. It was not potable. 

signs were posted at those wells that they were not potable. 

30 there should not have been use for anything other than dogs, 

datering dogs, washing hands, that kind of a thing. 

Q As far as the campsites go, the proposal, as I 

understand it, is there will ultimately be four campsites, each 

zampsite having one well; is that true? 

A That's the tentative proposal. And as Mr. Thomas 

said in his deposition, as the need expands, we would be 

prepared to meet the needs. 

Q Currently the lease only provides for four campsites; 

isn't that true? 

A I don't know that the lease even speaks to the number 
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3f campsites. 

Q As far as your PSC application goes, the application 

has asked for four well sites for four campsites; correct? 

A That's what Mr. Thomas's letter to us requested, yes, 

sir. 

Q Prior to filing your application, did you have any 

discussion with the Miami Tract Hunt Club members as to how 

many gallons of water they needed? 

A Did not have a discussion specifically on gallons, 

no. Mike and I had a discussion on what we thought - -  what we 

had seen over the years. Remember, Mr. Thomas has been the 

wildlife officer there for 27 years; I've been there for 25 

years. We've seen the campsites to the point, particularly the 

Cattle (phonetic) Creek campsite, where there were over 100 

campers there. We both felt that was not what was in the best 

interest to the campers. We wanted - -  we agreed that a 

reasonable number would be 25 campers per campsite to continue 

So those were the ballpark to have a quality experience. 

numbers that we were shooting for. 

Q So 25 campers for four campsites? 

A Per campsite. 

Q 

A 

Q 

true? 

25 members per campsite for four, for a total of 100. 

Yes. 

There are no bathrooms at these campsites; isn't that 
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A Currently there are none. 

Q Any plans for constructing bathrooms? 

A No, we do not have any. 

Q No shower facilities at these campsites; isn't that 

true? 

A Other than what is brought in on the campers. 

Q So people may have shower facilities within their own 

motor homes, but not a shower facility that's permitted on the 

premises; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q With regard to bulk service, you talked earlier about 

the City of Titusville. Isn't it fair to say that Farmton does 

not have contracts with any entity whether private or 

government to provide bulk service? 

A That's correct. But we've had discussions actually 

since this application was filed. One of the enclaves that has 

a substantial number of people camping at it and actually 

living at it, it's referred to as the Bell Ridge area. The 

owner of that land approached me and said, hey, we'd be 

interested in possibly getting some water. And my response to 

him was, let's wait until we complete this procedure and then 

we'll talk. 

Q The Bell Ridge is not owned by the Miami Corporation? 

A It is riot owned by Miami Corporation. 

Q So it's not within the current proposed service area? 
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A That's correct. But what we, I guess, had discussed 

ras providing water up to the edge of our territory and letting 

iim take water from that point on. 

Q Miami Corporation, as I understand it, owns all of 

:he lands within its proposed service area; true? 

A Not true. 

Q Who else owns lands within the proposed service area? 

A Florida East Coast. 

Q Florida East Coast Railroad? 

A Yes. 

Q Anyone else? 

A Not that I know of. 

Q As to fire protection, currently Miami Corporation 

ias two wells on the property for fire protection? 

A That's correct. 

Q And were you working for Miami Corporation on the 

2roperty when those wells were installed? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q You did not need PSC certification to install those 

;wo wells? 

A Not to my knowledge. 

Q Do you have any reason to believe that you would need 

?SC certification from Miami Corporation to install additional 

€ire protection wells on its own property:.' 

A Once again, you're starting to get into a legal area, 
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but I don't believe so. I think it's part of the overall 

package. When you put together all the needs and managing the 

resource properly, that's what we're concerned with, is make 

sure that the resource is managed properly. 

Q I think you talked a little bit in your direct 

testimony when you were giving your summary about there were no 

immediate plans to develop the property. So there are no plans 

to develop any residences within the Miami Corporation 

property; correct? 

A Not at this time there are not. 

Q And there are no plans for commercial development 

within the Miami Corporation property; correct? 

A That's correct, but who knows what tomorrow will 

bring. 

Q It'd be fair to say that anything in the future would 

be speculative? 

A Sure. 

Q You are the director of operations for Farmton Water 

Resources? 

A I believe my title is vice president of operations. 

Q And are you the person that is the on-site management 

for Farmton Water Resources? 

A Yes. 

Q And you will be the person that is actually managing 

a utility if it were certificated? 
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A With assistance from Hartman 61 Associates and 

whatever other help was deemed necessary, yes. 

Q You personally have no personal experience in 

managing a public water utility? 

A That's correct. 

Q Does Farmton Water Resources have a financial 

statement? 

A I do not believe we do. 

Q Does Farmton Water Resources have any written 

agreements with the Miami Corporation that commits the Miami 

Corporation to provide Farmton Water Resources with funding? 

A It was in one of the affidavits, yes. 

Q But is there any written agreement with the Miami 

Corporation? 

A None other than the affidavit. 

Q Is there any written agreement between Farmton Water 

Resources and Farmton Management to provide - -  that commits 

Farmton Management to provide Farmton Water Resources with 

financial commitments? 

A None other than those affidavits that I'm aware of. 

Q As I understand it, Miami Corporation completely owns 

Farmton Management; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Arid  F a r m L o r i  Management completely owns Farmton Water 

Resources; correct? 
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I'm not sure of ownership there. 

Do you know who owns Farmton Water Resources? 

A No, I do not. I presume that it's Miami/Farmton 

Yanagement, but I'm not positive to that effect. 

Q So you can't say for sure one way or the other? 

A No, I cannot. 

MR. McNAMARA: Commissioner, if I could just have one 

ninute to talk to my client. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes. 

BY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q How much money has Farmton Water Resources paid to 

its lawyers and consultants in this case? 

A All of them? 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

In excess of $500,000. 

MR. McNAMARA: That's all I have. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Bosch. 

MR. BOSCH: Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BOSCH: 

Who Q Mr. Underhill, just a few questions. 

specifically was it that identified that there was a need for 

central water service in this area? 

A For a central water service, it was determined that 

the Miami Tract Hunt Club was the impetus. 
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Q And when they determined that there was a need that 

Eor whatever reason the well wasn't going to be good enough for 

:hem anymore the way it was being done at that time, was any 

request made to Volusia County to supply them with the water 

;hat they needed? 

A Did Miami Tract Hunt Club go to Volusia County? Is 

Q 

;hat the question you're asking? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A Not to my knowledge. 

And the reason they didn't was because the real 

intent was to get all these 50-something-thousand acres into 

m e  large service area, correct, that was the main impetus 

Dehind this? 

A I think the impetus is the whole package. It is the 

?ackage of withdrawing the water responsibly and seeing that we 

20 not either overpump and have salt water intrusion as has 

nappened so often on cities up and down the east coast of 

Florida. They have the opportunity then to go to other lands. 

de sitting at Farmton do not want to see that happen. We don't 

have the opportunity to go to other lands. We only own this 

land. We do not want to see the water resource below Farmton 

destroyed. 

Q So quantity of water and quality of water was not 

really a factor in determining that you needed this water 

service , was it? 
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Sure it was. That's what I just said I thought. 

Well, you said there were other considerations 

Lncluding, you know, all the other things you just mentioned as 

Iar as utilizing the resources and - -  

A Utilizing - -  

Q - -  maintaining - -  

A - -  responsibly and making sure we do not get salt 

\rater intrusion, that's correct. 

Q Now, you could have alternatively simply asked the 

Zounty for service if you felt there was a need, and you 

vouldn't have had to spend $500,000; correct? 

A I think if you go back and look, when we started this 

irocess, there was a much more reasonable figure that we were 

spending on it. And it's why we're here today, this is what's 

2osting us. 

MR. BOSCH: No more questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Staff. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. FLEMING: 

Q Mr. Underhill, on Page 9 of your direct testimony, 

C'm referring specifically to Line 24, starting on Line 24, you 

state that the parent company has pledged to provide for all 

such capital needs as and when needed and clearly has the 

ability to do so. 

A Yes. 
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Q What is your basis for the statement that the parent 

Zompany clearly has the ability to provide for these capital 

ieeds? 

A Simply the value - -  for instance, the value of the 

Land which Miami Corporation owns free and clear should be 

zufficient to take care of any of those needs. 

Q Does Farmton have the financial ability to provide 

services proposed in its application? 

A Indirectly through Miami Corporation, yes. 

MS. FLEMING: Thank you. No further questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Commissioner, any 

quest ions? 

Redirect. 

MR. DETERDING: Yes. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

e I MR. DETERDING: 

Q You were asked several questions, Mr. Underhill, by 

Mr. McNamara about the membership in the hunt club. You 

indicated that there are 261 member families? 

A 261 family members, that's correct. 

Q And are there other types of members beside those 

261 family members? 

A Well, the 261 family, it's a membership for the 

family. That means that there's a primary member, then there's 

a spouse and whatever other children age 21 and below are also 
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?art of that individual membership. 

Q Are there law enforcement members? 

A Yes, there are eight I believe is the number of law 

snforcement memberships which also carry that same definition 

sf a membership, includes a spouse and children. And then, of 

course, Miami Corporation employees and retired Miami 

Corporation employees are members. 

Q And how many of those are there? 

A There are five Miami Corporation employees, and 

is one retired Miami Corporation employee. 

Q So there are actually somewhere closer to 275 m 

families or family memberships? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, you were asked about the number of, 

there 

rnber 

for 

lack of a better word, trailers or motor homes. What type of 

things - -  let's back up. What type of things are brought out 

to these campsites by the members of this hunt club? 

A It varies. Some of them are primitive tents to the 

fanciest trailer you can imagine - -  

Q Okay. 

A - -  and everything in between. 

Q And do these type of homes, are they left there 

throughout the hunt season? 

A Some of them go in and out on weekends, some of them 

will spend a couple of weeks, some of them are there from the 
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1st of September through the end of April. Some of them 

2scaped me this year and made it into May. 

Q Can you estimate the number of persons who are 

utilizing these hunt clubs for camping during the September 1st 

through April 30th hunt season? 

A You know, I'm not really the one that that question 

should be directed at. It should be directed at Mike Thomas. 

And I can take some things out of - -  if I have the liberty to 

take some things out of his deposition. 

Q Well, were you present at his deposition? 

A Yes, I sat in with him. 

Q Do you recall what he said were the number of persons 

Nho were utilizing those facilities? 

MR. McNAMARA: Objection. Commissioner, this is 

purely hearsay. It's not being offered to substantiate 

anything that's already in the record. The Commissioner has 

already ruled earlier that this deposition is not admissible, 

and I do not think this is - -  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I did not rule it was not 

admissible. I said it was not going to be utilized in lieu of 

prefiled testimony, but it was discovery and could be utilized 

during the course of the hearing under appropriate 

circumstances. 

MR. McNAMARA: I would submit, Commissioner, that 

this is not an appropriate circumstance to use it because this 
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Iitness is using it purely as repeating what he heard at the 

leposition. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: There's an objection. Do you 

lave a response? 

MR. DETERDING: Commissioner, this witness is telling 

rou what he understands to be the need within that area. There 

lave been many questions posed not only to this witness but to 

ithers about the need within the area. We have had excluded 

:he man who has the most knowledge about the people who are 

itilizing those facilities, and this is the witness who has the 

second most knowledge based upon not only his own experience 

m t  based upon the specifics outlined by that customer. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I will allow the question. 

lbjection is overruled. 

THE WITNESS: Would you please repeat the question. 

3Y MR. DETERDING: 

Q Well, I don't know that I can. But can you - -  based 

Jpon your understanding, both from your personal knowledge and 

from your discussions with Mr. Thomas and his statements that 

you've heard him make, what are the number of people that are 

utilizing these facilities during the hunting season? 

A I think we've got to break down the use into two 

separate areas. One is simply the daily needs of the hunter 

who comes in and does not camp, and he certainly has needs, 

drinking water, throughout the property. He's either got to 
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tote it with him, or he's got to go to one of these wells. If, 

in fact, he has killed a deer, that's going to take additional 

water for cleaning. One of the requirements is - -  we are a 

mitigation bank and one of the requirements is that we provide 

data to St. Johns regarding the take, the sex, the weight, 

et cetera. So our animals must be checked so that we can 

collect this information. And in this process, when you've got 

a dead animal, you need water for cleaning. So that's another 

need. 

And the third need, probably the largest, has to do 

with camping. And as Mr. Thomas said, there's - -  as the water 

becomes more available, the need will increase. We'll see the 

demand, maybe not - -  that's not quite the right word. The 

demand will increase as the hunters see there is water more 

available. Water is a precious commodity out there. I believe 

Mr. Thomas put together some numbers saying something to the 

effect that there were 50 days of camping, 50 days of high 

intensity camping when he expected there to be something on the 

order of 650 people out there that would potentially camp out 

there. And this excludes totally the rest - -  he was talking 

weekends and high use days. You know, there's times during the 

rest of the hunting season which varies from some point in mid 

to late September until the end of turkey gobbler season which 

ends around the end of April when there's a lesser need, but 

there's definitely a need at those times also. 
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Q What about the summer months? You mentioned 

something about the people assisting with the ~- manning the 

fire tower. 

A You know, it's interesting that you bring that up 

because we've totally disregarded that fact that the first and 

third weekends of the summer months we allow all of our hunters 

in to come to their feeders. Each hunter is allowed to place 

two feeders and keep them manned. One of the requirements of 

the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission is that in order 

to hunt over a feeder, you must have kept that feeder active 

for the prior six months. So they need to replenish their 

feeders. That means they must be in replenishing them and 

spend time on the property. At the same time, during that 

first and third weekend, they are taking the opportunity to go 

see what the animal count is like. So they are spending time 

there. Plus by the time they have - -  and we're getting up to 

120 of them. When you figure for the fire watch we've got four 

months, 

granted 

located 

We want 

We want 

Q 

A 

30 days a month, we've got 120 of them that are then 

permission to come in during the summer. 

Just this past weekend, we had two fires that were 

on Sunday in Farmton by the hunters. This is our goal. 

the hunters on our land. We want them utilizing it. 

to be in partnership with the hunters. 

Now, w h e n  you s d y  120 of them, is that families or - -  

That's right. That's the family. That enables the 
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3ntire family to come on Farmton. 

Q So during the winter, it's the more intensive use 

juring the hunting season, from September to April? 

A Yes. 

Q And then during the summer in the less intensive 

?eriod, it's the - -  there's 120 people who have the right to 

zome out there and utilize it? 

A That's at all times. Remember, the first and third 

deekends all the hunters have the rights and pretty much the 

2bligation because most of the hunters have feeding stations 

>ut there, and then they have that obligation to come out and 

spend time on Farmton. So, yes, there's - -  it's amazing, you 

30 out on the weekends, how many people are there. 

And the main reason that we have asked them to come 

3ut on the weekends, simply because there's too much logging 

traffic and the like that we don't want them - -  because they 

clreate a traffic jam, that we don't want to disturb the logging 

traffic . 

Q You mentioned a travel trailer or park that is - -  has 

sought some input from you about the possibility of obtaining 

service. What was the name of that? 

A Yes. That's Mr. Larry Lott (phonetic). That's at 

the Bell Ridge area. 

Q Bell Ridge. A n d  h o w  maiiy liomes OK- Lr-ailer-s a r e  

there? 
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A He didn't tender a number to me. You know, we're 

;alking certainly in excess 50; 75 is not inconceivable. I'm 

lot sure that the way he hooks up his electric that he's ever 

joing to tell us how many folks he's got back there. 

Q You were asked about the configuration of the systems 

:hat are operated by Farmton, and you said something to the 

?ffect that you were moving ahead with the power - -  powering 

:hese well sites. Can you explain to the Commission what you 

nean by that? 

A We've simply had additional discussions on - -  you 

mow, we recognize that the pitcher pumps were a stopgap 

neasure, a temporary thing, until we decided where we go from 

;here. Our intentions are to either provide a generator with 

:lectricity or have a direct pump or the solar power or we 

iring in electricity if it's close enough and if it does not 

interfere with the mitigation bank. So Mr. Drake and myself 

lave had discussions about where we go from here. 

While I think the best of all worlds would be the 

solar, I want to be comfortable because the publications he's 

giving me are very recent. I want to be comfortable before we 

invest a substantial amount of money in that that we have a 

3ood system. 

Q But is it the intent of Farmton to make upgrades in 

2rder to meet the needs out there at the - -  

A Oh, definitely. 
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Q Are you currently charging for water service at these 

iunt clubs ? 

A No, sir. 

Q And why is that? 

A We are not metered. We have not been certificated 

2nd been told it's acceptable. 

Q You were asked about your experience in managing a 

?ublic water supply utility. Do you have any experience in 

nanaging water resources, Mr. Underhill? 

A In managing water resources, yes, I would say so. 

Q Have you managed the water resources on the Miami 

'orporation property for the last 25 years? 

A I would say I have. 

Q Have you been involved in countywide water management 

€or Volusia County? 

A Yes. I think as I said in my direct testimony, I've 

3een - -  I was the agricultural representative to the Volusian 

dater Alliance from 1996 through 2003. I was on the ENRAC 

which is an appointed committee to the Volusia County Council, 

1992 to 1998. I was involved with the first group that met in 

the early 1980s for the silvicultural rule from the Forestry 

Association that met with St. Johns. And I am currently, and 

have been since the early 1980s, a member of Florida Forestry 

Association's Environmental Committee which established the 

best management practices for silviculture and continues to 
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review those. 

Q Okay. You were asked about the commitment from Miami 

Corporation. Have you seen the financial statements of Miami 

Corporation? 

A Yes, sir, I have. 

Q And does Miami Corporation have any debt? 

A Miami Corporation has no debt. 

Q Does Miami Corporation have assets well in excess of 

anything that could be imagined to be necessary for Farmton? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Has Miami Corporation made a commitment to Farmton to 

provide the funding as and when needed for utility purposes? 

A For all reasonable needs, yes, they have. 

Q Did they provide an affidavit to that effect? 

A Yes, sir, they did. 

Q Have you seen that affidavit? 

A Yes, I have. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Deterding, do you wish to 

have this identified, or is it already in the record? 

MR. DETERDING: I do wish to have it identified, 

Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. It will be identified as 

Exhibit Number 40. 

(Exhibit 40 marked for identification.) 

BY MR. DETERDING: 
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Q Is this the document you referred to as the affidavit 

from Miami Corp to - -  showing their commitment to provide 

funding to Farmton? 

A Yes, it is. 

MR. DETERDING: Commissioners, I don't have any 

further questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Exhibits. 

MR. DETERDING: Move Exhibit 40 and that's it, 40. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection - -  

MR. McNAMARA: Commissioner, we object to Exhibit 40. 

Exhibit 40 is an affidavit from a person that was never 

identified by Farmton as a witness in this case. It was a 

person that was not included in their prefiled testimony. It 

inTas not included in their prehearing statement. It's a person 

that has not been subject to cross-examination at this hearing, 

and we would submit it's inappropriate to submit the contents 

Df this affidavit. 

The Commissioner has already overruled me on allowing 

the witness to speak about it, but for actually admitting this 

document into evidence, we would submit it as inappropriate 

especially in the light of, as I said, the facts are that this 

is a member of the Miami Corporation. They could have filed 

prefiled testimony. They could have identified this person on 

their witness list, which required us to identify all the 

witnesses we intended to call, and they did not do so. And 
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under the circumstances, without an opportunity to 

cross-examine we believe it's a violation of due process to 

admit testimony, which is what an affidavit is, of this person. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: There's been an objection. 

Response. 

MR. DETERDING: Yes, Commissioner. This is simply 

corroborative of his testimony, that he relied upon this, just 

like the affidavit that is in the original application that 

nobody has had any objection to that has already been admitted. 

It is simply an affidavit from an officer of the corporation on 

which these witnesses have relied as showing that they have the 

financial backing and the financial ability. It is almost 

identically word for word the same as the affidavit except that 

it's from Miami Corporation instead of Farmton Management as 

the one that's already in Exhibit E to Mr. Hartman's 

Exhibit GCH-1. And itls simply sworn testimony that he is 

aware of it and that this is the underlying basis for that - -  

part of the underlying basis for that understanding and his 

testimony. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me ask you a question. Did 

this witness in prefiled direct testimony make reference to the 

financial capabilities of Miami Corporation and its commitment 

to seeing that there is adequate funding for operation of the 

utility? 

MR. DETERDING: In his direct testimony, I believe he 
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nade a reference to the ability of the parent company to 

?rovide funding. It's on Page 9 of his testimony, line - -  if 

you'll look at the sentence beginning on Line 19, Page 9, 

through Line 21. And then if you'll look also on the next 

sentence that begins on Line 22 and goes onto the first line of 

Page 10. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Objection is overruled, 

I'll allow the exhibit. Exhibit 40 is admitted. 

(Exhibit 40 admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We have identified Exhibit 39. 

MR. McNAMARA: Yes. Commissioner, we would offer 

Exhibit 39 at this time. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, hearing no 

objection, show that Exhibit 39 is also admitted. 

(Exhibit 39 admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you, Mr. Underhill. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Deterding, you may call 

your next witness. 

MR. DETERDING: We call Tara Hollis to the stand. 

TARA L. HOLLIS 

was called as a witness on behalf of Farmton Water Resources, 

LLC and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 
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Q Ms. Hollis, have you been sworn? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Please state your name and employment address. 

A Tara Lynn Hollis, 201 East Pine Street, Suite 100 

Orlando, Florida 32801. 

Q Have you been retained by Farmton to provide 

testimony and expert opinions in this proceeding? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Did you prepare in conjunction with my office a 

document referred to as the prefiled direct testimony of Ta 

Hollis consisting of four pages? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q If I ask you those same questions here today, wou 

your answers be the same? 

A Yes, they would. 

Q Do you have any corrections to make to that 

testimony? 

A 

Q 

testimony 

A 

Q 

resume? 

A 

Q 

0 ,  

.ra 

.Id 

No, I do not. 

Did you also prepare in conjunction with your direct 

two exhibits identified as TLH-1 and TLH-2? 

Yes, I did. 

And TLH-1 being a PSC order and TLH-2 being your 

Correct. 

Are there any corrections to those exhibits? 
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A No, there are not. 

MR. DETERDING: And those exhibits have already been 

identified and admitted as Exhibit 7 and 8; correct, 

Zommissioner? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Give me just a moment and I 

dill confirm that. Yes, Exhibit 7 and 8 have been identified 

m d  admitted. 

MR. DETERDING: Thank you. 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Ms. Hollis, would you please provide the Commission 

with a summary of your direct testimony. 

A Yes. Basically I was in charge of developing the 

rates and charges for the retail fire protection and bulk 

customers based on cost of service principles and based on PSC 

rules and the Florida Statutes and also using cost projections 

that were developed by our engineers and customer and flow 

projections that were developed. And that's pretty what I'm 

here to testify on. 

MR. DETERDING: We would request that Ms. Hollis's 

direct testimony be inserted in the record as though read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, it shall be 

so inserted. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A .  

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF TAFA L. HOLLIS, M.B.A., C.P.A. 

State your name and address. 

Tara Lynn Hollis, M.B.A., C.P.A., Hartman & Associates, 

Inc., 201 E. Pine Street, Suite 1000, Orlando, Florida 

32801. 

Ms. Hollis, are you a licensed Certified Public Accountant 

in the State of Florida? 

Yes. My license number is AC-0031100. 

Ms. Hollis, what is your area of specialty in your practice? 

I specialize primarily in water and wastewater utility 

financial matters. 

What professional experience do you have that would qualify 

you to provide testimony in this matter? 

I have been involved with the development of water and 

wastewater rates and charges for various governmental units 

throughout the State of Florida, which has included the 

preparation of detailed financial projections. 

In what area are you going to provide testimony in this 

matter? 

In financial rate setting matters associated with the 

application of Farmton Water Resources, LLC, and for the 

Florida Public Service Commission original water 

certificate. 

What specifically does that include? 

It includes the retail, fire protections, and bulk water 

user rates and service availability charges. 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

DIRECT TESTIMGNY OF T A m  L. HOLLIS, M.B.A., C.P.A 

Was the application for certification and supporting 

financial report prepared by your firm? 

Yes, our firm prepared the engineering, financial, 

hydrogeological, and utility management aspects of the 

Fartmon Water 

n Composite Exhibit 

application on behalf of our client, 

Resources, LLC, which were included 

”GCH- 1” . 

Was the application submitted to the 

Commission with an associated report 

Commission? 

Public Service 

on record at the 

Yes, these have been presented as Exhibits GCH-1. 

Is your rate setting analysis presented in Exhibit GCH-l? 

Yes, Section 6 and Attachment B of the Engineering and 

Financial Report (Exhibit GCH-1) detail the financial 

information and rate design including supporting schedules. 

How were the expenses and capital costs contained in Exhibit 

GCH- 1, derived? 

I worked with our engineers and hydrogeologists to develop 

expense and capital projections, which were utilized in 

developing the rates and charges identified in the 

application. 

What is the appropriate return on equity for Farmton Water 

Resources, LLC? 

On July 5, 2002, the Public Service Commision issued Order 

No. PSC-02-0898-PAA-WS reestablishing an authorized range of 

-2 - 
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return on common equity for water and wastewater utilities, 

which I have included as Exhibit TLH-1. This leverage 

formula was used as the basis for the rate of return on 

equity for Farmton Water Resources, LLC. 

What is the appropriate AFUDC rate for Farmton Water 

Resources, LLC? 

The rate utilized was developed based on the parent 

company’s, Farmton Management LLC, lending rate of prime 

plus two percent (2%) . 

Has a newer leverage formula order been issued and adopted 

by the Florida Public Service Commission since the 

preparation of your schedules contained in the Farmton Water 

Resources, LLC Application? 

Yes, a newer leverage formula has been adopted and while we 

have no problem with updating the information contained 

within the application in order to recognize the most recent 

leverage formula adopted by the Commission, we could not do 

so at that time, because that newer version of the leverage 

formula had not been adopted. 

Utilizing the information provided, did you then develop the 

rates and charges shown in the Application? 

Yes, those rates and charges were developed by me in 

conformance with the requirements of the applicable 

provisions of PSC Rules and Chapter 367, Florida Statutes. 

Are you expecting to provide rebuttal testimony? 

- 3 -  
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A. To the extent that it is needed, yes. 

Q. Do you have a resume? 

A. Yes, that is attached as Exhibit TLH-2. 

Q. Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 

A. Yes. 
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MR. DETERDING: And we tender t h e  witness f o r  cross 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Mr. Knox. 

MR. KNOX: I have no questions of this witness. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. McNamara. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

McNAMARA : 

Hello, I just have a few questions for you. 

Okay. 

MR. McNAMARA: Commissioner, is the next 

lxhibit Number 41? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That's correct. 

(Exhibit 41 marked f o r  identification.) 

IY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Ms. Hollis, we've handed you what has been marked for 

.dentification as Exhibit Number 41. Is this Support Table 

1-4 revised May 6th of 2004, is this a document that you 

irepared? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q I just have a few brief questions about this 

locument. As I understood it, initially the plan that was 

;ubmitted in Farmton Water Resources' application was to charge 

I base facility charge based upon each ERC for the hunt club; 

is that correct? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q In this document I believe you've changed that to 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

214 

clharge each hunt camp $83 base facility charge for a two-inch 

dell; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Excuse me. I said a two-inch well, I meant a 

two-inch meter; correct? 

A Yes. I'm sorry. Yes. 

Q Do you have a copy of the engineering report in front 

3f you? 

A I do. 

Q This is talking about retail potable service. In 

both the initial December of 2001 application as well as in 

this revised May 6th of 2004 application, it appears to me that 

in line Account Number 640 for rents you've charged all of the 

rents in the base facility charge? 

A Yes, we did. 

Q Is that a mistake? 

A That is how we decided to treat it. It has also - -  

m d  in our bulk rates and I believe - -  well, just the bulk 

rates it's put as a gallonage charge, and it could be included 

zither way. 

Q I don't want to cut you off. What was the last word 

you said? 

A We could have included it either way. We decided on 

the retail side to put it in the base facility charge. 

Q But isn't that rent calculated based upon a per 
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gallonage charge from the Miami Corporation to Farmton Water 

iesources? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q You have not reviewed a financial statement for 

?armton Water Resources; correct? 

A No, I have not. 

Q If it existed, is that something that as an expert 

€or Farmton you would have expected to be provided with? 

A Yes. I have reviewed one of Farmton Management that 

Ras included with the initial application. 

Q But the actual applicant is Farmton Water Resources, 

2nd you have not seen their financial statement; correct? 

A Correct, because they currently have not been in 

2peration as a water utility, so therefore, I would expect that 

to be prepared at the time that they start operating as a water 

utility. 

Q With respect to Farmton Water Resources, are you 

aware of any written agreements between Farmton Water Resources 

and Farmton Management to provide financial backing? 

A Any agreements? No. The affidavit that was included 

with the initial application, yes. 

Q But there is no actual written agreement that 

provides a commitment? 

A No. All our discussions were verbal in that verbal 

commitment. 
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Q And you're not aware of any irrevocable line of 

:redit or letter of credit to Farmton Water Resources from any 

:ntity to provide financial backing; correct? 

A Correct. 

MR. McNAMARA: That's all I have, Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Bosch. 

MR. BOSCH: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Staff. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. FLEMING: 

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Hollis. Please refer to the 

zngineering report; I'm looking specifically at Page 90. It's 

support Table A-1. 

A Okay. 

Q In that Support Table A-1, you included - -  or income 

tax expense was included in the schedule supporting the 

?reposed rates and charges for retail potable and bulk water 

service? 

A Correct. 

Q Has Farmton subsequently removed income tax expense 

from those schedules? 

A Yes, we have. 

Q Can you explain why? 

A Yes. Because Farmton will be treated as a 

disregarded entity, those expenses will not be paid by Farmton 
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Water Resources, and therefore, we have not included them in 

there to be recovered through the rates. So we have revised 

the schedules - -  I believe mid to late April we revised those 

schedules. 

MS. FLEMING: Thank you. We have no further 

questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioners. 

Redirect. 

MR. DETERDING: Just a couple. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Mr. Hollis, you were asked about the inclusion of 

rents in the base charges for the hunting camps. Based upon 

your experience in calculating rates, is it the norm to include 

the costs related to utilization of land for well sites in the 

base charge? 

A For the actual use of the land and the rent of the 

land? 

Q Uh-huh. 

A Yes, because it's a royalty payment. We could have 

treated it either in the gallonage as a variable cost or in the 

base charge. 

Q Okay. You were asked about whether you were aware of 

any written commitment or documents from Miami Corporation or 

Farmton to - -  I'm sorry, or from Farmton Management committing 
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:o finance the needs of Farmton Water Resources. Do you 

i e l ieve  that these affidavits that have been submitted both as 

lxhibit E to the original application and is Exhibit 40 

:onstitUte a written commitment of that financing? 

A Yes, I do. 

MR. DETERDING: I don't have anything further. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Exhibit 41, is it moved? 

MR. McNAMARA: Yes, we would move it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, hearing no 

)bjection, show that Exhibit 41 is admitted. 

(Exhibit 41 admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you, Ms. Hollis. 

(Witness excused.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We have now concluded the 

lirect case for Farmton? 

MR. DETERDING: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. We are going to 

;ake a ten-minute recess at this point, and then we will 

2roceed with Titusville's case. 

I believe 

zall your 

(Brief recess. ) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Call the hearing back to order. 

we were on Titusville's case at this point. You may 

witness. 

MR. McNAMARA: We would call Raynetta Grant. 

RAYNETTA CURRY GRANT 
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Mias called as a witness on behalf of the City of Titusville, 

Florida, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MCNAMARA: 

Q Ms. Grant, were you sworn earlier today? 

A Yes. 

Q Can you please tell us your name, your current 

employment, and your employment address. 

A My name is Raynetta Curry Grant. I am employed with 

the City of Titusville at 2836 Garden Street, Titusville, 

Florida 32780. 

Q You provided prefiled testimony in this case. Do you 

recall that? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q And if I were to ask you the same questions today, 

would you give the same answers? 

A Yes, with one correction. 

Q Can you please tell us what that correction is. 

A One modification. On Page 5 of the testimony, I made 

the statement that Farmton is attempting to force the city to 

purchase bulk water. In a later deposition, I modified that 

wording to be more that we would limit what the city's options 

were in that area. 

u With respect to your prefiled testimony, you also had 

four exhibits. Do you recall that? 
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Yes. 

Do you have any changes to those four exhibits? 

No. No, I don't. 

MR. McNAMARA: Commissioner, at this time we would 

tender Ms. Grant's prefiled testimony, and we believe her 

zxhibits are already in evidence. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes. The prefiled testimony, 

dithout objection, shall be inserted into the record. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

APPLICATION OF FARMTON WATER RESOURCES, LLC. 

Prefiled Direct Testimony of Raynetta Curry Grant 

On Behalf of The City of Titusville 

Q: Please state your full name, place of employment, and business address for the record. 

A: Raynetta Curry Grant, City of Titusville, 2836 Garden Street, Titusville, Florida 32796. 

Q: In what capacity are you employed by the City? 

A: I am employed by the City of Titusville as its Water Resources Director. 

Q. Do you have a resume? 

Q: Do you have any specialized education and training relevant to this proceeding? 

A: I hold a Bachelors Degree in Civil Engineering and a Masters Degrees in Environmental 

Engineering. I also have a Diplomate from the American Academy of Environmental 

Engineers, specialty certificate in Water Supply/Wastewater Engineering. 

Q: Do you hold any professional licenses relevant to your testimony in this proceeding? 

A: Yes, I am a professional engineer, licensed in Florida and Virginia. 

Q: What are your duties as Water Resources Director? 

A: As they most directly relate to this proceeding, I manage the City's public water system. The 

City's public water system provides retail potable water services in the form of residential, 

commercial and fire protection service. I also manage the City's wastewater system, which 

produces high quality reclaimed water, an important water resource for the City. 
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Q: Generally, what geographic area does the City's public water system serve? 

A: The City of Titusville has a water and sewer service area generally described as the area 

bounded by the Indian River Lagoon on the east, Kings Highway and Range Road on the 

south, Parrish Road on the north and extended westerly towards the St. Johns River. 

Q: How efficient is the City's water system in meeting the water supply needs of its customers? 

A: The City operates a very efficient public water system, which consistently meets all 

applicable state and federal drinking water standards. The City provides safe, quality water 

at very competitive rates. The success of the City's water system is documented in our 

Consumer Confidence Report, which is attached as Exhibit "Grant 2." 

Q: Does the City presently have any plans to expand its service area? 

A: The City is well positioned to meet the potable water needs of any communities in the 

vicinity of the City's service area that are not served by the County or another municipality. 

However, the urbanizing areas of northern Brevard County that are not in the City of 

Titusville's service area are in the Brevard County service area. The City does not have plans 

to expand its service area in the near term, because there is not an unmet need for potable 

water service in northern Brevard County at the present time. 

Q: Does the City presently have any unmet need for potable water supplies? 

Q: Does the City project any unmet needs for water supplies in the near future? 

A: No. The City has a thorough water supply planning process, through which the City will 

meet all its projected potable water supply needs. As part of my duties as Water Resources 

Director, I supervise the City's water supply and infrastructure planning processes to ensure 

that the City can meet future water system demands, including the fire protection needs of the 
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City. The City regularly updates its growth projections and reviews its water supply 

development plans to ensure that the City can cost-effectively meet future water needs. In 

order to meet projected future water demands, the City is in the process of expanding its 

allocated water supplies to meet projected increases in potable water supply needs. The City 

has applied to the St. Johns River Water Management District for water use permits for a 

new wellfield. 

7 

8 

9 

Q: Do you work closely with Brevard County and other public water utilities in northern 

Brevard County as part of your duties as Water Resources Director? 

A: Yes. The City of Titusville works closely with both the City of Cocoa and Brevard County 

to coordinate water supply efforts. 

Q: Are you aware of any unmet potable water supply needs in northern Brevard County? 

A: No. Each local government water utility is required by state law to develop a plan for 

meeting its projected potable water demands. This is generally done as part of the 

infrastructure element of the locality's comprehensive plan. In the 2002 Legislative Session, 

the Florida Legislature added the requirement that each local government comprehensive 

plan evaluation and appraisal report include a work plan covering at least a 10-year planning 

period for building water supply facilities that are identified in the element as necessary to 

serve existing and new development and for which the local government is responsible. 

Q: Is there a regional planning process designed to ensure that the water needs in Brevard 

County are met? 

A: Yes. The Water Supply Board of Brevard County was established by the County and the 

municipalities for the purpose of working cooperatively to ensure the water needs in the 

County are met. Brevard County and the municipalities in the County have an efficient 
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method for providing and expanding water systems to meet the needs in the County through 

interlocal agreements, local ordinances, and coordination by the Water Supply Board. The 

St. Johns River Water Management District also conducts a water supply planning process. 

A copy of its District Water Supply Plan is attached as Exhibit "Grant 3." 

Q: Are you familiar with the Farmton Water Resources, LLC. application to the Florida Public 

Service Commission for an original certificate for operating a water utility in northern 

Brevard and southern Volusia Counties? 7 

8 A: Yes. 

9 Q: Is there a need for the potable water utility in northern Brevard County, as proposed in the 

10 Farmton application? 

1 1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A: No. Farmton appears to indicate that much of the existing needs in the proposed service area 

can be met with the existing water supply sources and infrastructure. Additional potable 

water demands based on future growth described in the application are purely speculative. 

Q: Would the City of Titusville be able to cost-effectively provide services in the area of 

northem Brevard County where the Farmton application proposes to provide services, if a 

16 need were to develop? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A: Yes. If a need for potable water supplies developed in that area, the City is in a very good 

position to meet those needs. Brevard County would also be in a good position to supply the 

needs in the proposed Farmton service area in northern Brevard County. The City and the 

County have a history of working cooperatively to ensure that water supply needs are met. 

When a need arises, the City and the County will work cooperatively with any developers to 

determine which utility can best meet the water supply needs and reach an appropriate 

23 agreement. 
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1 Q: Is there a need for bulk potable water services in northern Brevard County, as proposed in the 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
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13 
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15 

16 

2 Farmton application? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

A: No. I work closely with each of the public water utilities in northern Brevard County, and I 

am not aware of any presently existing demand for bulk water in the region. 

Q: In your opinion, what is the purpose Farmton's certificate application? 

A: The Farmton application states that the purpose of the proposed service area is to provide for 

retail potable water supply needs, fire protection and bulk potable water needs. I do not 

believe that this is the primary purpose of the Farmton application. I believe the purpose of 

the Farmton application is to give the Miami Corporation leverage in opposing the City of 

Titusville's water use permit application for its new wellfield and to force the City to 

purchase bulk water from the Miami Corporation, through Farmton Water Resources, LLC. 

The City has exchanged multiple pieces of correspondence with the Miami Corporation and 

its representatives that make this purpose quite apparent. Copies of this correspondence and 

related documents are attached as Composite Exhibit "Grant 4." 

Q: In your opinion, is the new water utility proposed by Farmton in the public interest? 

A: No. If Farmton is successful, and the Miami Corporation prevents the City &om developing 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

its new wellfield, it will result in higher water rates for the customers of the City's public 

water system. This result would be contrary to the public interest. 

Q: In addition to your direct testimony, do you anticipate offering testimony for impeachment or 

rebuttal? 

A: Yes, to the extent needed. 
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3Y MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Ms. Grant, can you please give us a brief summary of 

Tour prefiled testimony? 

A Certainly. Basically in the testimony I went over 

'itusville's process for water supply planning and the thorough 

irocess that we follow. I've been with the city since 1999, 

ind at that time we were doing a planning process, but the city 

ias done that for many, many years to make sure that future 

lemands are met. As part of that, I also discussed or talked 

ibout our application that we currently have on file with the 

;t. Johns Water Management District to modify our consumptive 

ise permit. And I also in the testimony discuss working with 

ither cities or municipalities within the county. 

MR. McNAMARA: At this time we would tender Ms. Grant 

for cross-examination. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Knox. 

MR. KNOX: I have no questions of this witness. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Bosch. 

MR. BOSCH: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Wharton. Mr. Deterding. 

MR. DETERDING: Thank you, Commissioner. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Ms. Grant, Titusville currently has a CUP application 

pending before the St. Johns River Water Management District, 
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ices it not? 

A Yes. 

Q And your CUP application assumes a demand for water 

;ervice? 

A Yes, it has a demand in there. 

Q And it assumes that there is a need for additional 

later by Titusville? 

A It does not modify what our existing CUP allows us, 

)ut it does have in there to identify another wellfield in 

yThich to draw water from. But it does not increase what our 

:UP currently allows us, so it doesn't ask for additional 

sater. 

Q So it is, in effect, proposing to distribute that 

:apacity under your current CUP to a new location or some 

lortion of it to a new location? 

A That's correct. 

Q And it includes no additional capacity whatsoever 

ibove the 6 or 6.5 I believe you said in your deposition was 

?xisting. 

A Right. In our CUP, currently I believe it's 6, but 

it goes to 6.5. And in our application we were not asking to 

increase that. 

Q NOW, you currently have a CUP, as you said, with a 

zapacity of 6.5 MGD; correct? 

A It goes up to 6.5. That isn't what it is currently 
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Q Somewhere around 6 to 6.5. 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. But you are currently pumping from your wells 

nly approximately 3.5; is that correct? 

A Approximately that. Between 3.5 and 4. 

Q Okay. Now, if you don't get the additional capacity 

equested within or the - -  scratch that. 

If you don't get the CUP modification you have 

equested, do you still need another source of water, in your 

iind, other than that that is already existing under your 

xisting CUP permit? 

A Yes. Yes, basically. We calculate in our future 

rater study what the current safe yield is of the wellfield, 

rhich is approximately I believe about 4 safe yield for that. 

.nd so if that's not spread out in order to meet the future 

lemands, there would need to be another water source. 

Q The city is - -  when I say, "the city,'' I mean the 

lity of Titusville, so in case I shortcut it again. The City 

~f Titusville is currently receiving water from the City of 

locoa as well, is it not? 

A Yes, we are. 

Q And you are purchasing that water from Cocoa even 

Ihough you have this additional capacity in your WUP and in 

jour water treatment facilities; correct? 

A Yes. 
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Q Now, you entered into - -  is this correct, you entered 

nto that agreement with Cocoa because of an anticipated demand 

hat has not occurred? 

A I wasn't here at the time, but that's my 

inderstanding. 

Q Okay. And was that also entered into in part because 

If the concerns about the degradation in the quality of water 

md the degradation to the wells if you pumped at the level 

iecessary to meet your needs? 

A Yes. It was based both on what the current condition 

)f the wellfields were as well as what the projected demand was 

joing to be. 

Q Now, when you originally negotiated or when that - -  

ihen the city originally negotiated that agreement with the 

lity of Cocoa, it was for 3 million gallons a day with a take 

)r pay provision of 1 million gallons per day; is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And the City of Titusville paid $8 million in 

:apacity fees for that reservation at that level? 

A I don't recall what the exact number - -  what the 

Zxact figure was. 

Q Okay. Do you have your deposition with you taken by 

Vr. Wharton? 

A Yes. 

Q If you will turn to Page 17. You were asked by 
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4r. Wharton on Line 1, "What was the impact fee?" 

And you said, "I think it was approximately 8 million 

give or take at the time that the agreement was entered into." 

Is that correct? 

A Yes, that's what it says. 

Q Now, you've renegotiated or - -  well, before I get to 

that. You're paying retail rates to the City of Cocoa its 

retail rates; is that correct? 

A That's the only rate the city has, yes. 

Q So they don't have a separate rate for bulk service 

nything like that? 

A No, they don't. 

Q Are you paying both a gallonage and a base charge to 

them based upon that retail rate? 

A Yes, there's a fixed and a usage. 

Q So the base charge is based upon the number oL ERCs 

that you-all are serving behind that meter? 

A Yes. 

Q And then the gallons charge is the retail rates as 

you said. And as I understand it, from what your - -  you 

explain that in your deposition that it is an inclining block 

rate structure, and therefore, the breakpoint at the blocks is 

based upon the number of ERCs as well. In other words, if a 

breakpoint occurs f o r  one ERC at 5,000 gallons, then you 

determine the breakpoints for your system - -  
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A Yeah, you multiply those ERCs. 

Q - -  at a multiple of the ERCs behind the meter. 

A Uh-huh. 

Q Okay. Now, you've renegotiated that agreement with 

the City of Cocoa, have you not? 

A Yes, we have. 

Q And you've reduced the reservation to 

1.5 million gallons per day with a 750 gallon per day take or 

pay provision? 

A That's what it currently is. The take or pay 

gradually decreases down to -5. 

Q And as I understand it, you've reduced the service 

availability or the capacity reservation fee, whatever you want 

to call it, down to approximately $3 million? 

A No, down to - -  yes. If you look at the total amount, 

it would be approximately $3 million, yes. 

Q And you're still paying retail rates both in base and 

gallonage charges; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Would you agree that given the excess capacity and 

the treatment facilities operated by the City of Titusville, 

that the city would be in a better position to obtain raw water 

to be treated at its own plan rather than buying water from 

Cocoa? 

A Well, that's one of the options that we looked at in 
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)ur future water plan. 

Q Would that be cheaper than the current arrangement? 

A With the City of Cocoa? 

Q Yes. 

A From the calculations that were made, yes, it would 

le. 

Q Isn't it true that even if you obtain that water from 

:armton, that as bulk raw water at the rates proposed in this 

lroceeding, that it would be cheaper than the arrangement with 

Zocoa? 

A We had an analysis done by our financial consultant, 

m d  I believe that was the case as well. That's my 

inderstanding . 

Q As I understand your situation with your proposed 

:UP, the capacity in your current CUP will not be needed or 

Mill not be fully utilized for at least ten more years; is that 

zorrect? 

A Are you referring to the 6.5? 

Q Yes. 

A I would say at least ten years, and we're really 

?rejecting out 20 years for that. 

Q Now, you note in your testimony you do not believe 

there's a need for potable water in the northern Brevard County 

3rea as proposed by Farmton's application; correct? 

A Yes. 
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Q Have you reviewed the application and the proposals 

€or who is to receive that potable water? 

A Yes, I've looked at the application. 

Q And in that application, isn't it true that the 

itility relies upon providing potable water service to hunt 

Zlubs, offices of the related party and various other entities, 

311 of which are currently receiving service? 

A Yes. 

Q So how can you say there's not a need for service if 

there's already service being provided to people for potable 

dater use? 

A I believe what I said was there wasn't a need for a 

utility out there. 

Q Okay. So if people had their own wells or have their 

3wn alternative water supplies, there's not a need for a 

uti ity out there? 

A I didn't see a need for that. I believe that's what 

I said. 

Q Okay. Well, I guess I'm trying to get at why you say 

that. There's a need for service in that area, is there not? 

A That's what they had in the application, yes. 

Q But I mean, there are people who want water service 

out there, are there not? 

A I don't have that from my direct knowledge, but what 

was in the application, yes. 
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Q Okay. Now, you refer to proposed additional, I 

juess, additional potable water needs within the proposed 

lerritory as, quote, purely speculative. What are you 

referring to there? 

A The additional proposed water needs? 

Q Yeah. What additional proposed water needs within 

:he service territory are you referring to when you say, 

'purely speculative"? Are you referring to something that was 

specifically enumerated in the application? 

A I believe what it had in the application was 

17-some-odd-thousand based on the number of members, and then 

;hat number doubled. And I couldn't see any basis for the 

joubling of that number. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

17, OOO? 

I think gallons per day. 

Oh, gallons per day. 

And then it went up, I believe, to 

30-some-odd-thousand gallons per day. 

Q And so it's the 30,000 gallons per 

clalling purely speculative? 

A I didn't see any basis for that or 

day that you're 

what that was 

based on. And there was also the bulk water, the 2.75 for bulk 

inJater customer. 

Q So you're talking about bulk water service when you 

refer to that purely speculative aspect? 
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I wasn't sure the bulk water customer was, yes. 

But that's what you're referring to when you say, (s 

' pur e 1 y s p e c u 1 at i ve ? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. You state that the City of Titusville would be 

ible to cost-effectively provide services in the area of 

iorthern Brevard County where Farmton's application proposes to 

)rovide that service if the need were to develop; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q How far away are the nearest facilities of the City 

If Titusville to the boundary of the Farmton property, 

ipproximately? I don't want an exact figure. Four or five 

niles? 

A Probably seven, eight, nine miles, something like 

:hat. 

Q And to the nearest area proposed within the 

2pplication of Farmton for service is - -  would you agree is 

somewhere near the - -  within a couple of miles or a mile and a 

nalf of the northern border of the county and therefore even 

Earther than that away? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, in addition to the statement that I think 

you changed in your testimony about the attempt to force the 

city to purchase water, you also made the statement that the 

purpose of Farmton's application is to give Miami Corporation 
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everage in opposing the City of Titusville's water use permit. 

lhat documents have you seen or what testimony have you heard 

.hat gives you that - -  that makes you reach that conclusion? 

A Not any testimony or documents. That's consulting 

11th our counsel on that. 

Q Okay. So that's just based on the things your 

iounsel has told you; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Has the City of Titusville gone to the county and 

:equested permission to locate the wells up there on the 

:ailroad right-of-way? 

A Have we requested permission from the county to 

.ocate the wells there? 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

No. 

MR. DETERDING: Thank you. That's all I have. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Staff. 

MS. FLEMING: We have no questions. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioners. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Grant, I have questions that 

lopefully will help me solidify your position, the city's 

?osition on this application. On Page 4 of your testimony at 

;he very bottom, starting at Line 19, you talk about your 

villingness and ability to provide potable water service in the 

3rea that Farmton requests to serve. And you also go on to 
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liscuss that you have a good working relationship with the 

:ities and counties in the area. And you say, "When a need 

irises, the city and the county will work cooperatively with 

m y  developers to determine which utility can best meet the 

dater supply needs." What utility are you talking about, the 

?rivate utilities that may request service, or are you talking 

3bout the municipality utilities? 

THE WITNESS: In this instance, we're talking about 

;he municipalities, the Brevard County utility or the City of 

ritusville utility. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Do you have any reason to 

2elieve that you can't establish a good working relationship 

dith a private utility that wants to serve the same area? 

THE WITNESS: No, no. No, I don't. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: The next page - -  

THE WITNESS: Not in general. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: The next page - -  Mr. Deterding 

touched on this, but I want to follow up. You have this 

concern that the Miami Corporation is really using this 

application as leverage to fight your CUP application 

proceeding. A couple of questions in that regard. How long 

has your application been pending? 

THE WITNESS: I believe our original submission was 

in 2001. I don't have the exact date, though. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Original submission. Have you 
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had to work on it or modify it since 2001? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. We've had requests for additional 

information from the district which we have responded to. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Does it generally just take that 

long for it to be approved, or what is the problem with the CUP 

application you have pending? 

THE WITNESS: As far as the length, I couldn't answer 

that, what's the typical length, and I think that would be 

specific to what the application is. As to problems, there are 

questions that the district asked as far as additional 

information which we provide in order that they can do a 

thorough review. So I don't know how I would characterize it 

as problems but more so additional information that's needed in 

order to make an assessment. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Well, we're in 2004, so 

depending on what month you filed your original application, 

it's three years now. In your experience and expertise, what 

is the normal time period for having a consumptive use permit 

application addressed by - -  it's the water management district; 

right? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, it's the water management 

district, and it's been three years. But I would say all that 

time it has not been active back and forth between the district 

and the city. There could have been - -  to get the information, 

there could have been months in compiling that and giving that 
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L O  the district. So it hasn't been, like, an active every 

nonth there would be back and forth for that. 

And you asked about my experience. As far as that's 

-oncerned, the district could better answer that. I've been 

Liith the city since 1999. This is my first CUP application 

Liith the district. So there's not anything relative that I 

zould give you as far as length. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Has Miami Corporation in some 

form or fashion been actively involved in that proceeding with 

;he water management district and your consumptive use permit 

2ppl i ca t ion? 

THE WITNESS: That would have to be a question for 

:he district. I believe that they're an interested party and 

3et the documentation that we provide. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Well, I'm going back to your 

zomment that you have this fear that the Miami Corporation 

rJould use this proceeding as some sort of leverage with the 

?roceeding you have with the water management district. And I 

juess I'm trying to get my hands around why you believe that to 

De the case. 

THE WITNESS: Well, looking at the application there, 

there is the bulk water supply, and I think as Mr. Drake 

nentioned in his testimony here, Phase I shows wells 

approximately in the same area that the city has their 

application in for, and we recognize that that's a limited 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

240 

source up there. So I have concerns as far as the impact of 

those proposed wells on - -  the city's proposed wells. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: If this Commission were to grant 

Farmton some sort of certificate for all or part of this 

territory, do you envision that your consumptive use permit and 

whatever permits they have to seek through the water management 

district, do you envision there being competing applications 

for consumptive use permits? 

THE WITNESS: I think that could occur, yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Through the water management 

district process, is there some sort of preference for who was 

first in? 

THE WITNESS: I'm not sure. I'm not sure. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I take it from your testimony, 

you don't have a concern related to whether this application 

results in urban sprawl. That is not the concern I gather from 

your testimony; is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: That's not my expertise, no. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Redirect. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Ms. Grant, I just have a few more questions for you 

on redirect. You were asked some questions by Mr. Deterding 
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3bout the charges from the City of Cocoa vis-a-vis compared to 

:he charges that Farmton would make. Is there a different 

:omparison that you make as a utility director in evaluating 

:he cost of providing water? 

A Could you repeat that? 

Q I guess make it simpler. What do you compare the 

?armton proposal to provide bulk service to Titusville, what 

3ther source of water do you compare that with? 

A We compare that to the city's own ability to provide 

3ulk water from that area, not with the City of Cocoa. 

Q With respect to - -  you were asked some questions by 

vlr. Deterding about Titusville's ability to provide service in 

the Farmton service area, and there was references to your 

direct testimony, and Mr. Deterding asked some questions about 

the nearest treatment plant. If the City of Titusville were 

asked to provide water to Farmton and if there was established 

a need in the Farmton territory, what would the City of 

Titusville propose to use as a source for that water? 

A We would propose - -  that was based on if there was a 

wellfield that was located there under our current - -  what 

we're proposing under our current CUP application. If there 

was a wellfield there, there would be infrastructure there, and 

seeing that our treatment facility is 13 miles from that area, 

we would probably look there first. 

Q With regard to the question you were asked at the end 
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sf Mr. Deterding's questioning about whether the City of 

Titusville had applied to Brevard County for permission or 

consent to put in the wellfield, is it your understanding that 

the ordinance exempts that as long as it's approved by 

St. Johns Water Management District for Titusville? 

A Yes, that area was recognized in the ordinance as 

being exempted or as being part of Titusville's area. 

MR. McNAMARA: That's all I have. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. We've already addressed 

the exhibits. Okay. Thank you, Ms. Grant. You may be 

excused. 

(Witness excused.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. McNamara, you may call your 

next witness. 

MR. McNAMARA: Our next witness. We would like to 

call Mr. Henry Thomas. 

HENRY LEE THOMAS 

was called as a witness on behalf of the City of Titusville, 

Florida, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Mr. Thomas, you were placed under oath earlier today? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Can you please tell us your name and employment 

address. 
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Q 

latter? 

A 

Q 

A My name is Henry Lee Thomas. My business address is 

,41 North Maitland Avenue, Suite 300, Maitland, Florida 32751. 

And have you been retained by Titusville in this PSC 

Yes, I have. 

And what was the purpose of that retention? 

A The purpose was to provide testimony regarding the 

:osts of bulk water from Farmton versus the City of 

'itusville's project that they're contemplating. 

Q Did you prepare prefiled testimony for the Public 

;ervice Commission in that regard? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q And with regard to that prefiled testimony, if I were 

;o ask you those same questions today, would you give the same 

mswers? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Would you make any changes to those questions and 

mswers? 

A No. 

Q There was an exhibit attached to your prefiled 

testimony. Would you make any changes to the exhibit? 

A No. 

MR. McNAMARA: At this time I would like to tender 

the prefiled testimony of Mr. Thomas, and I believe the 

exhibits are already in evidence. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection, the prefiled 

estimony shall be inserted into the record. 
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1 BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

2 

3 Docket Number 021256-WU 
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APPLICATION OF FARMTON WATER RESOURCES, LLC 

Prefiled Direct Testimony of Henry Thomas 

On Behalf of The City of Titusville 

Q: Please state your full name and business address for the record. 

A: My name is Henry L. Thomas and my business address is 341 North Maitland Avenue, Suite 

300, Maitland, Florida 3275 1. 

Q: By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

A: I am employed by Public Resources Management Group, Inc., a management-consulting firm 

serving the utility industry. I am a Vice President and Principal in that company. I have 

twenty-five years of experience in the areas of utility economics, planning, financing and 

Q: In what capacity are you retained by the City of Titusville? 

A: I am retained by the City %s its water and wastewater rate consultant. 

Q: Have you ever been qualified as an expert? 

A: Yes. I have previously submitted testimony before Public Service Commissions and in court 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 Commission. 

proceedings on a variety of utility related matters. A resume outlining my work experience, 

including a list of regulatory dockets and court cases where I have previously filed testimony, 

is included as Exhibit "Thomas 1 .'I In addition, during my career I have submitted numerous 

municipal electric rate studies for review by the staff of the Florida Public Service 
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32 

Q: How efficient is the City's water system in meeting the water supply needs of its customers? 

A: The City operates a very efficient public water system. As the City's rate consultant, I 

prepare studies of the City's water rates and as part of these studies we compare the rates with 

other water utilities in the region. Based on my experience in working with the City I can 

conclude that it operates a very efficient utility. The utility's management and staff 

consistently implement cost savings measures, plan prudently to meet the utility's financial 

and customer service obligations and its water rates are fair and equitable, discourage 

wastehl irrigation practices and are competitive with other utilities in the region. 

Q: In your opinion, is the new water utility proposed by Farmton Water Resources, LLC. in the 

33 public interest? 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 rebuttal? 

A: No. If Farmton is successful, and the City purchases bulk water from Farniton rather than 

own and operate its own wellfield in the area, based on Farmton's proposed rates as provided 

to the City, it will result in higher water rates for the customers of the City's public water 

system. This result would be contrary to the public interest. 

Q: In addition to your direct testimony, do you anticipate offering testimony for impeachment or 

40 A: Yes, to the extent needed. 
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3Y MR. McNAMARA: 

Q Mr. Thomas, can you please provide us with a brief 

;ummary of your prefiled testimony? 

A Yes. And that testimony was rather brief in itself, 

2nd it had two main points. One is that the City of Titusville 

3perates an efficient water utility system that plans for and 

nanages their resources prudently; and that, two, that the 

iosts proposed by Farmton to the City of Titusville for bulk 

dater service was in excess of what Titusville could see as 

zosts if they were to develop the project on their own. 

MR. McNAMARA: At this point I would tender 

Yr. Thomas for cross-examination. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Knox. 

MR. KNOX: No questions of this witness. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Bosch. 

MR. BOSCH: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Wharton. 

MR. WHARTON: Thank you, Commissioner. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WHARTON: 

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Thomas. I just want to make sure 

that the record is clear about the basis for your opinion 

that - -  as you've indicated is very brief. In fact, your 

opinion is based upon a memorandum or a similar document that 

Miami Corp gave the City of Titusville proposing bulk water 
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service from the properties; correct? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And that memorandum actually preceded this 

3pplication; correct? 

A Yes, it did. 

Q Did you know whether Farmton Water Resources, LLC, 

sven existed at the time? 

A I don't believe they did. 

Q Do you know whether that particular memorandum 

reflected something that is embodied within the application 

which is at issue in this proceeding? 

A Well, the costs of developing the wellfields and the 

project costs I believe were embodied in their proposal. There 

may have been modifications to the rates themselves. 

Q Do you know whether those same costs are proposed in 

this application? 

A I believe they have been modified, but essentially 

are the same. 

Q To the extent that you have drawn any conclusions 

about the comparative economic advantages or disadvantages of 

Farmton's proposal to the city, you've done that based on the 

letter that Miami Corp give to the city that we just discussed; 

correct? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Rather than on a specific analysis of this 
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ipplication in and of itself? 

A That is correct. 

Q Have you heard considerable reference today that, in 

€act, that bulk offer is no longer being discussed between the 

?art ies? 

A That's my understanding. 

Q Okay. NOW, when you have used the phrase "public 

interest'' in your testimony, isn't it true that the public 

interest you're referring to is whether or not it is in the 

?ublic interest of the city for Farmton to be certificated as 

2pposed to whether it is in the public interest for anyone who 

is located outside the city? 

A That's true. 

Q Your economic assumptions assume that Farmton selling 

dater to the city would result in higher rates for the city's 

zustomers because you assume the city wouldn't develop its own 

uellfield if it purchased the water from Farmton; isn't that 

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And again, those assumptions were based on the 

memorandum that Miami Corp gave the city as we've discussed? 

A Yes. 

Q Isn't it true that you haven't even considered 

whether if Farmton was certificated but the City of Titusville 

was still able to develop an equal source of water whether 
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:hrough their current consumptive use permit or another source, 

:hat whether or not Farmton's certificate would in that case 

.mpact the public interest of the city? 

A Well, I'd assume that their application for the bulk 

vater services was relative to Titusville. So if that's not 

:he case, then you would be correct, yes. 

9 So the answer to my question would be yes? 

A Yes. 

MR. WHARTON: That's all I have. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Staff. 

MS. FLEMING: We have no questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioners. 

Redirect. 

MR. McNAMARA: No further questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. And we have already 

iddressed exhibits. Okay. Very well. Mr. Thomas, you may be 

?xcused. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

(Witness excused.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We're going to take a brief 

recess before we proceed with Brevard's case. Ten minutes. 

MR. McNAMARA: Commissioner, if I could just ask a 

3rief procedural question. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Uh-huh. 

MR. McNAMARA: Since Mr. Thomas and Ms. Grant have 
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estified, would it be appropriate for them to go back home 

onight? Ms. Grant has young children, and I think she'd like 

o get home to them if that's at all possible. 

hank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes, they have been excused. 

We'll take ten minutes. 

(Brief recess. ) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Call the hearing back to order 

[r. Knox. 

MR. KNOX: Mr. Martens is up, I believe. 

RICHARD H. MARTENS 

ras ca Led as a witness on -eha Brevard County and, having 

Ieen duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. KNOX 

Q Mr. Martens, were you sworn earlier today? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Would you please state your name and your employment 

2nd address, please. 

Richard Martens, 2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, A 

Yelbourne. 

Q Did you in conjunction with my office have prefiled 

testimony prepared and submitted in this case of about 14 

pages? 

A 

Q 

I did. 

Have you reviewed that testimony to see if you would 
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nake any changes? 

A I have. A n d  I have three changes I'd like to make. 

Q Can you tell us what those are? 

A On the first page we've had a reorganization, and I'm 

the water - -  I'm the utility services director these days. And 

on Page 8, Lines 13 and 14, McIntosh Highlands is actually an 

approved PUD, not a DRI, and I'm not aware of the ownership 

status of the people we've been talking to on that project. 

Q Okay. If I were to ask you the same questions that I 

asked you during the prefiled testimony, would you answer 

the - -  and the changes you made, would you answer them the 

same? 

A Yes, I would. 

Q And there were exhibits attached to your prefiled 

testimony. Have any of those changed or any corrections to 

those? 

A No. 

MR. KNOX: At this time, Mr. Chairman, we'd like to 

move Mr. Martens' testimony, prefiled testimony and to be 

inserted into the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

so inserted. 

Without objection, it shall be 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

APPLICATION OF FARMTON WATER RESOURCES, LLC 

FOR AN ORIGINAL WATER CERTIFICATE 

DOCKET NO. 021256-WU 

ON BEHALF OF BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF RICHARD H. MARTENS 

Please state your name and occupation. 

Richard Martens. I am the 
d ; r r . c  f7-r 

of the Water Resources Department for 

Brevard County, Florida. 

How long have you held that position? 

I have been employed in that position since 1991. 

What are your job responsibilities? 

I oversee and supervise the construction, operation and maintenance of all 

water and wastewater facilities owned by Brevard County, Florida, as well as 

the employees that work for the Water Resources Department. As part of that 

responsibility, I am in charge of overseeing and presenting an annual budget 

for capital improvements, operations and maintenance of water and sewer 

facilities. 

What is the total projected Water Resources Department budget for fiscal yea1 

2003-2004? 

The Water Resources Department overall budget is approximately $58.6 

Million, $4.8 Million of which is represented by the Barefoot Bay Water and 

Sewer system. 

What is the Barefoot Bay system? Q. 

A. The Board of County Commissioners Water Resources Department operates a 
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Q- 
A: 

Q- 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

water and sewer system owned by the Barefoot Bay Water and Sewer District 

under a management agreement between the County and the District. 

What is the Barefoot Bay Water and Sewer District? 

The District was created as a special water and sewer district by the Brevard 

County Board of County Commissioners in accordance with Part 11 of Chaptei 

153, as well as Chapter 189, Florida Statutes and the Board of County 

Commissioners sits as the governing body of that District. 

Do your responsibilities involve planning for future expansion of the Brevard 

County water and sewer system? 

Yes. 

Do your responsibilities also involve the implementation of the Potable Water 

Element of the Brevard County Comprehensive Plan? 

Yes. 

I would like to draw your attention to Exhibit RHM-1 and ask you to identify 

that document if you would please. 

Exhibit RHM-1 is a copy of the current Potable Water Element of the Brevard 

County Comprehensive Plan. 

Was that element, as it appears in Exhibit RHM-1, in effect on the date of 

Farmton application, December 20,2002? 

Yes. 

I would draw your attention to Policy 3.4 of the Potable Water Element. 

Would you please read that policy into the record? 

“Policy 3.4, 

areas, or Public Service Commission (PSC) regulated service areas shall be 

reviewed and approved by Brevard County and applicable agencies.” 

Newly proposed service areas, expanding restricted service 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Has the Farmton application at issue in these proceedings been reviewed or 

approved by Brevard County? 

No. 

Is there a procedure or process that has been set up by Brevard County to 

implement Policy 3.4 of the Potable Water Element by requiring review and 

approval of applications for newly proposed service areas such as Farmton’s? 

Yes. The County Commission has enacted an ordinance that requires any 

water provider or supplier to obtain the consent of the County Commission, 

acting in its capacity as the governing board of the Brevard County Water and 

Sewer District. 

I would like to show you a copy of Exhibit RHM-2 and ask you if that is a 

copy of the ordinance you just mentioned? 

Yes, it is. 

Do you know the legal authority under which that ordinance was adopted? 

I believe that authority is specifically set forth in the ordinance recitals. I 

would quote those sections as follows: 

“WHEREAS, Chapter 153, Part 11, Florida Statutes, authorizes the County 

Commission to create special districts to provide water and sewer facilities; 

and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 153, Part JJ, Florida Statutes, provides that the County 

Commission may serve as the governing body of any water district created 

under the act; and 

WHEREAS, Section 153.86, Florida Statutes, provides that no water 

treatment plant or other facilities for the supply and distribution of water, or 

sewer facilities shall be constructed within any district unless the district board 
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shall give its consent. . .”. 

Would you please read the provision in that ordinance that requires the 

consent of the County Commission acting as the District governing body? 

That would be section 4.10 of the ordinance. The relevant part of that section 

reads: 

“10. 

Q. 

A. 

Pursuant to the District’s authority under Section 153.86, Florida 

Statutes, upon application for the extension or construction of a water or sewer system 

into an area for which consent has not been given, the District may grant consent to 

the construction or expansion of any water or sewer system which is to provide 

domestic or industrial service to customers. The District’s consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld upon demonstration of all of the following. . .”. After that, a 

list of criteria and standards is set forth in the ordinance. 

Q. 

A. No. 

Q. 

Has Farmton sought consent under that provision? 

Has the County Commission, in its capacity as District governing board, 

granted consents to any other public or private water suppliers? 

Yes. Those consents are set forth in the ordinance sections 4.1 through 4.9. 

What was the process, if any, that was used to establish the consents set forth 

in the ordinance? 

A key component of the enactment process utilized prior to adoption of the 

water and sewer district ordinance involved the solicitation of input from 

every supplier of water or sewer service in Brevard County, both public and 

private. Information we sought included proposed service areas for each 

supplier as well as input on the wording of the ordinance. 

Which water suppliers provided input into the ordinance? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
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A. 

Q- 
A. 

The water suppliers included the City of Cocoa, the City of Melbourne, the 

City of West Melbourne, the City of Palm Bay, the City of Titusville and 

Brevard County. Some consumer cities, such as Cape Canaveral and the City 

of Satellite Beach, also provided input. The private entities providing input 

included East Central Florida Services Inc. Sewer providers providing input 

included the City of Rockledge and the City of Cocoa Beach as well as the city 

water providers that also provide sewer service. 

Over what period of time was input sought from those providers? 

The first draft of the ordinance was produced on January 29,2003 and was 

continuous through the adoption of the ordinance in July 22,2003. The 

County Commission submitted the draft ordinance to the Brevard County 

Water Supply Board for consideration. The Water Supply Board is an advisory 

board comprised of appointed representatives from the cities providing water 

service in the county, as well as cities who are customers of the supplier cities. 

The Board was created to discuss water supply issues affecting the county. 

The Water Supply Board met on numerous occasions to discuss the provisions 

in the ordinance and reviewed numerous drafts of the ordinance before voting, 

ten to one, in support of adoption. 

How did that input affect the final version of the ordinance? 

Essentially, the ordinance sets forth the consent of the County Commission, 

acting as the District governing board, to specific service areas for each of the 

provider municipalities. Based upon the comments received from municipal 

providers, the areas were redefined and ordinance language was changed. In 

addition, the Commission consented to private utilities providing service to 

existing customers and new customers within their certificated service areas to 

Q. 

A. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

the extent that the existing infrastructure of that utility was sufficient to serve 

those new customers. In essence, the process evolved into, as the City 

Attorney for Melbourne put it, a potable water supply plan for the entire 

county. 

Who made that remark? 

Melbourne City Attorney Paul Gougelman. 

I would like to show you a copy of Exhibit RHM-3 and ask you if you can 

identify that document? 

It is a copy of minutes from the July 22,2003 meeting of the Brevard County 

Board of County Commissioners concerning the agenda item at which the 

Water and Sewer District Ordinance was considered for adoption. 

Were you at that meeting? 

Yes. 

Did Mr. Gougelman appear at that meeting? 

Yes. 

Does Exhibit RHM-3 fairly summarize the comments made by Mr. 

Gougelman? 

Yes. 

Please read the portion of Mr. Gougelman’s remarks within the brackets. 

“Thank you very much. Paul Gougelman, representing the City of Melbourne 

as City Attorney, and I’m here on behalf of the City today just to give you a 

few comments regarding the proposed water and sewer ordinance. The first 

thing I want to do, on behalf of the City, is to thank the Commission. If you’ll 

think back many, many months, you had an ordinance that was before you; it 

looked like it was going at full speed through this room; and the Cities did ask 

you to slam on the brakes, engage in some intergovernmental cooperation, run 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

it through the Water Supply Board, and seek some input from the 

municipalities, which you did; and I want to thank you all for that. I think it 

was a true exercise in intergovernmental coordination, and I think as a result, 

all of us can now say we’ve come a thousand miles and that the product that 

you have before you is going to be much more meaningful. If you stand back 

from the forest and don’t look at the individual trees, I think what you will see 

is that what you’re creating is actually a water and sewer plan for Brevard 

County; and it’s rather amazing. Commissions all over the State of Florida 

over the last 20 years have tried to do this without much success, and you’re 

going to do it.” 

Now Mr. Martens, I would like to show you a copy of Exhibit RHM-4 and ask 

if you can identify that document? 

Exhibit RHM-4 is a graphic depicting existing county water distribution and 

supply lines connected to the North Brevard Water System, which we call the 

Mims plant, which is located about one mile south of the intersection of 1-95 

and S.R. 46 in Brevard County. The graphic shows existing lines in blue, 

Farmton’s proposed certificated territory in chartreuse, the Walkabout project 

in green and McIntosh Highlands DIU in red outlined in red and colored, in 

part, in brown. 

Mr. Martens, does Exhibit RHM-4 show any areas that receive potable water 

from Brevard County? 

Yes. All of the areas where the blue lines are shown which include several 

subdivisions including the Fawn Lake subdivision located about a mile to the 

south of the southernmost boundary of Farmton’s proposed certificated 

territory. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

What is the Walkabout project shown on Exhibit RHM-4? 

Walkabout is a residential project that has been approved for 1500 single 

family homes in a golf course community. The golf course is complete and 

the developer is currently seeking subdivision plat approval for the first phases 

of development. 

Will Brevard County be providing potable water service to Walkabout 

project? 

Yes, Brevard County has a written agreement to provide that service, as well 

as an agreement that allows the county to drill new wells in that area, subject 

to modification of the existing consumptive use permit for the North Brevard 

Water Supply system, the Mims system. 

What is the McIntosh Highlands area shown on Exhibit RHM-4? 

McIntosh Highlands is an approved -gRwa€ Impact. The 

owners of the area in brown have recently contacted me about the possibility 

of the County providing potable water service to that area. The discussions 

are in the preliminary phases at this time. 

I would now like to you a copy of Composite Exhibit RHM-5 and ask if you 

can identify that document? 

Yes, I can. The first page of Composite Exhibit RHM-5 is a graphic depiction 

of data that I have compiled from the county’s North Brevard Water System, 

copies of which are also attached to this exhibit. The top graphic depicts the 

water treatment capacity of the plant, plant flows, average annual daily flows 

from the plant and projected average annual daily flows based upon existing 

infrastructure, including wells and treatment facilities. The graphic shows that 

the Mims water treatment plant is currently running at less than one-third of 

its 

r Lt n 
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Q- 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q- 

2.4 million gallon per day capacity and that, based upon projected flows, the 

Mims plant will continue to operate well below its maximum capacity into th 

foreseeable future. 

What does the second graphic show? 

The second graphic is a depiction of total residential customers, projected 

residential customers, total equivalent residential connections, ERC’s, 

Projected ERC’s, both of which are based upon 250 gallons per day of 

consumption per residential unit, as well as the concurrency capacity of the 

Mims Water Treatment Plant. The graphic shows that the Mims plant is 

currently serving only about thirty percent of its current 9,600 ERC 

concurrency capacity. 

What does the term “concurrency capacity” mean? 

Concurrency capacity is the capacity of the plant based upon the level of 

service established in the Potable Water Element of the Comprehensive Plan 

at 250 gallons per day per customer. Using that number and our current 2.4 

million gallons per day capacity at the treatment plant, the number of 

customers that we can serve is 9,600. 

Drawing your attention again to Composite Exhibit RHM-5, would you pleas1 

tell us what the blue line represents? 

The blue line represents the projected total ERC’s, including those that will b 

generated by Walkabout which are estimated at about 300 per year, through 

the year 2029. 

What is the plum colored line at the top of the Residential Customers graphic 

That line represents the total plant concurrency capacity. 

Can you tell us what the area between the blue line and the plum line 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

represents? 

That area represents the excess capacity in the North Brevard Water System 

plant at Mims. Our projections show that the plant will have excess capacity 

for the supply of potable water through the year 2029 and beyond. 

I would now like to return your attention to the Potable Water Element of the 

Comprehensive Plan. Specifically Policy 3.5. Would you please read the fir 

sentence of that provision? 

“Policy 3.5. Potable water facilities and services intended to serve future 

development needs that are not located in the 0-20 year future potable water 

service area (see Map 1) shall not be permitted or provided unless the potablc 

water service area is amended in the Potable Water Element of the 

Comprehensive Plan or a non-governmental entity is the provider of the 

potable water facilities, so long as the private potable water service is 

consistent with the Brevard County Comprehensive Plan.” 

Actually the reference to Map 1 is a scrivener’s error. The future potable 

water service area map is actually Map 2 of the Potable Water Element. Map 

1 is the map showing Potable Water Treatment Plants. 

I would now show you Composite Exhibit RHM-6 and ask you to identify th 

document if you can. 

Composite Exhibit RHM-6 is comprised of Map I ,  Potable Water Treatment 

Plants, and Map 2, the Existing Potable Water Customers and Future Servicl 

Area map both of which are contained in the Potable Water Element of the 

Brevard County Comprehensive Plan. 

Does the area encompassed by the Farmton application fall inside or outside 

of the 0-20 year future potable water service area shown on Map 2, Composi 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Exhibit RHM-6? 

The Farmton area is located outside of the 20-year future potable water servict 

area shown on Map 2. 

Has Farmton’s proposed Public Service Commission certificated area been 

approved under Policy 3.4 of the Potable Water Element? 

No. 

Is Objective 5 of the Potable Water Element a provision with which a private 

potable water service must be consistent? 

Yes 

Would you please read that objective?. 

Objective 5. Brevard County shall maximize l,e use of existing facilities to 

discourage urban sprawl. 

Do you know whether or not there is existing residential or commercial 

development in the over fourteen sections of land encompassed by the 

proposed certificated area identified in the Farmton application which is the 

subject of this proceeding? 

There is very little, if any, residential or commercial development in that area. 

Does Brevard County have a policy specifying when or if the Mims water 

system may be expanded to meet demand for potable water outside of the 

current county service territory in the areas proposed by Farmton for its 

certificated territory? 

I believe that scenario would be covered by Policy 1.2 F of Residential Land 

Use policies and Policy 4.1 B of the Agricultural Land Use Policies of the 

Future Land Use Element of the Brevard County Comprehensive Plan. Both 

of those policies provide for expansion of the system upon a showing of an 

11 
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Q. 
A. 

Q- 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

overriding public benefit or as part of an MSBU or MSTU program paid for 

by the customers receiving the service. 

What is an MSBU? 

An MSBU is a municipal service benefit unit. 

How would the MSBU be applied to expand water service from the Mims 

plant? 

In the context of expanding the supply of potable water from the Mims plant, 

an MSBU would involve the imposition of a special assessment on the 

properties benefitted by the water system. The special assessment would be 

an amount sufficient to offset the cost of providing the special benefit 

conferred by the expansion of distribution lines and other costs of extending 

service to the area where that service has been requested. 

What is an MSTU? 

An MSTU is a municipal service taxing unit. 

How would an MSTU be used to expand water service from the Mims plant? 

We have never done an MSTU for that purpose. 

Do Polices 1.2 F and 4.1 B provide any other mechanism for providing water 

service to Farmton’s proposed certificated area? 

Yes, the developers or owners of property in that area could pay for, install 

and donate or dedicate to the county the infrastructure necessary to connect 

into lines already extended from the Mims water treatment plant. The county 

would then supply water through those dedicated or donated lines and, of 

course, maintain those lines after they were donated or dedicated. 

Would any other action be required by the County to provide water service in 

Farmton’s proposed service area? 
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A. Under Policy 3.5 of the Potable Water Element, the County Commission 

would have to amend the service areas identified in the comprehensive plan. 

The County would also have to seek a modification of its North Brevard 

County Water System consumptive use permit. I am also studying the 

possible transfer or lease of the North Brevard County Water System assets by 

the County to the Brevard County Water and Sewer District. 

Is there any county policy that determines when the Mims water treatment 

plant will be expanded? 

Yes. That policy is set forth as Policy 3.3 of the Potable Water Element of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Referring you to Exhibit RHM-I, is Policy 3.3 set forth in that exhibit? 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. Yes. 

Q. I will now show you Exhibit RHM-7 and ask if you can identify that 

document? 

Exhibit RHM-7 is a graphic that I have created based upon the same data that 

is attached to Exhibit RHM-5. Exhibit RHM-7 shows my calculations of the 

number of years before the Mims plant will require expansion as determined 

under policy 3.3 of the Potable Water Element. In making that calculation I 

used two assumed growth rates. The first growth rate I assumed was 369 

ERC’s per year, which is the estimated number of units that will connect once 

the Walkabout project is fully under construction. The second growth rate 

assumption I used was made about the growth rate 132.72 ERC’s per year, 

which is what we currently experience without the Walkabout project. As you 

can see, even at the higher growth rate, the Mims plant will not need to be 

expanded for another 17.6 years, which means that such an expansion would 

have to be placed in the Capital Improvements Element of the Comprehensive 

A. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Plan in about 12.6 years. 

What do your calculations reveal when the 132.72 ERC’s per year growth rate 

is assumed? 

Under that assumption, the Mims plant would not have to be expanded for 

forty-nine years, meaning that the expansion would not have to be placed in 

the Capital Improvements Element for forty-four years. 

If Fannton were to build a water treatment facility within its proposed 

certificated area, would that facility be a duplication of the County system at 

the Mims Plant? 

Yes, to the extent that the Mims Plant has excess capacity. 

No further questions. 
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3Y MR. KNOX: 

Q Mr. Martens, could you give us a summary of your 

lestimony, please. 

A I would summarize three points. The first, the 

Zounty operates a significant water and wastewater utility 

system throughout large areas of the county; that the 

2omprehensive plan has provisions that requires privately 

iwned - -  or utilities asking to - -  submitting for new or 

Zxpanded service areas to have those areas reviewed and 

2pproved by the Board of County Commissioners. And the Board 

D f  County Commissioners has adopted by ordinance or created by 

Drdinance a special water and sewer district that has granted 

zonsents for the operation of water and sewer systems within 

;he district and provides approval from the district of 

zonstruction of new water and sewer systems. 

MR. KNOX: At this time, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to 

tender Mr. Martens for cross-examination. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Mr. McNamara. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MCNAMARA: 

Q Mr. Martens, for how long have you been the utility 

director or your prior title for Brevard County? 

A I think about 13 years. I don't remember whether it 

w a s  ' 9 0  or '31. 

Q During that tenure, has the Miami Corporation ever 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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nade a request from Brevard County for water service in Brevard 

Zounty? 

A Not that I'm aware of. 

Q And during that time has Farmton Water Resources ever 

nade a request for water service in Brevard County? 

A Not that I'm aware of. 

MR. McNAMARA: No further questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Bosch. 

MR. BOSCH: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Deterding. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Mr. Martens, are you aware of the facilities that 

Titusville is proposing to put along the railroad right-of-way 

in the northern part of the county? 

A In a general way, yes. 

Q Okay. And what do you understand those to be? 

A A series of potable water supply wells in the 

Floridan aquifer along the FEC right-of-way. 

Q And this is for raw water, is it not? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Do you understand - -  do you have any feel for where 

they would propose to treat that water? 

A It's my understanding it would go back to the city's 

treatment plant. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q And would that line along - -  down to the city's 

.reatment plant traverse the Brevard County water service 

.erri tory? 

A Well, the north Brevard service area is in between 

.he wellfield and the city's water treatment plant. I have no 

lirect knowledge of their intended route. 

Q Have they requested anything from Brevard County with 

-egard to siting of that transmission facility through Brevard 

lounty, northern Brevard County service territory? 

A At one time we had discussions of constructing a 

;hared raw water line through an area that we call the 

ilalkabout Development. That's an area where the county is 

leveloping a new raw water wellfield in the surficial aquifer. 

le had some preliminary discussions maybe two years ago on a 

lumber of issues dealing with raw water supply, but we haven't 

lad any in quite a while. 

(1 I don't think that answers my question. My question 

is, have they sought permission from Brevard County to locate a 

Line through the Brevard County territory that.would be 

iecessary to run that water from those wells to their treatment 

facility? 

A What has happened is in the special - -  the special 

jistrict for the water - -  the special dependent district for 

:he water and sewer district, the district has acknowledged the 

7ityls application. And let me see if I can find the exact 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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words. "The Board of County Commissioners as its governing 

body consents to the necessary transmission mains and 

facilities from Area IV wellfield to the City of Titusville 

water treatment facilities to the extent that the transmission 

lines would not substantially, adversely, and materially impact 

a substantial number of existing residents or owners in the 

unincorporated area of the county." That's the official action 

of the county in that regard. 

Q Would you tell me where you're looking at? 

A It's in the exhibit to my direct testimony. It's 

Exhibit RHM-2. It's Brevard County Ordinance 03-032, and it is 

on Page 14, Section 7, Subsection A. 

Q So, in your mind, is that some sort of an exemption 

from the ordinance? 

A That's a grant of consent. I believe that's in a 

section of the ordinance that calls a grant - -  that's called 

"Grants Of Consent," Section 4. So I guess the full citation 

would be Section 4, Paragraph 7(a). 

Q So does this outline the test that Brevard County 

would apply to anyone seeking permission to construct 

facilities whether they would substantially, adversely, or 

materially impact a substantial number of existing residents or 

owners in the unincorporated area of the county? 

A No. T h a t  p r o v i s i o n  i s  somewhere else. 

Q Well, is that the test that has been applied here? 
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A That is the language that the County Commission 

adopted. Section - -  I guess this is Subsection 10 of that same 

section is the discussion of the test that - -  the consideration 

that the Board of County Commission would give other 

applications. 

Q Okay. And those are - -  you're talking about the 

Subparagraph A through H? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Does this relate to the requirement within the comp 

plan or a requirement that facilities - -  the designation of 

service territories within the comp plan? 

A No, sir. This is the water and sewer district 

ordinance. 

Q Okay. So this is a grant - -  in your mind, this is a 

grant of both a consent under the ordinance and under the comp 

plan? 

A No, sir. No, sir. This is simply a grant under the 

ordinance. 

Q Okay. Is it true that the nearest Brevard County 

water facilities to Farmton's proposed territory are at least 

two miles away from that territory? 

A I would say about two miles. 

Q And that's from the boundary of the territory; 

correct? 

A Correct. 
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Q As far as the areas proposed for service initially 

?armton, it is several more miles to those locations, is it 

lot? 

A I'm afraid as I listened to the discussion today I 

uas clueless as to where those places were. I've never seen 

;he map. If they're located - -  

Q Well, I believe they were shown on the exhibits to 

;he application. Have you reviewed the application? 

A No, I have not. 

Q So you wouldn't know whether they were twice that far 

2r three times that far? 

A No, sir. 

Q But the location of Brevard County's facilities 

iearest to the Farmton property would be southeast of the 

southeast corner of the property? 

A Correct. At this time that would be the closest 

?lace. 

Q Okay. You discuss the service area served by the 

dims plant as designated by the Brevard County comprehensive 

plan. I believe you said that does not overlap any of the 

territories proposed for service by Farmton? 

A That was my understanding looking at the maps. 

Q Okay. Are there any plans to expand the service 

territory of the north Brevard water system presently that 

you're aware of? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes. 

Q And when did those come about? 

A I'm expecting imminently an application from a 

developer to extend water and sewer service approximately 

chree - -  a minimum of three and a maximum of five or six miles 

iorth of the north terminus of the north Brevard system along 

:he US-1 corridor. The McIntosh project - -  the people with 

interest in the east half of the McIntosh project, about 

360 units of the approved PUD have requested water and sewer 

service. They will make, it is my understanding, I'm thinking 

uithin the next 30 to 45 days, an application to amend the comp 

?lan service area map for both water and sewer to include their 

?roperty and simultaneously a request pending denial of that 

request, simultaneous request of a grant f o r  consent to build 

their own facilities. 

Q Where is that located? Can you show us on that map 

2pproximately where that's located? 

A It's in this area, the Scottsmoor area, east of US-1, 

&est of 1-95. And I believe - -  I thought that was part of one 

2f our exhibits we had that. Yes, it's Exhibit RHM-4, Page 1. 

That doesn't appear that it copied very well. 

The southern boundary of that area that's called 

"expression of interest'' is about three miles north of the 

t e r m i n u s  of t h a t  e d s t e r r i  branch of our system and extends in 

2nother - -  approximately two miles further north along US-1. 
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Q Okay. I believe you misstated. It's east of 

-95 and west of US-1; correct? 

A Yes, sir. If I said something different, I stand 

!orrected. 

Q All right. Thank you. And that is still at least a 

:ouple of miles from the boundary of the Farmton property; 

:orrect? 

A I think it's about two miles. 

Q Okay. Before Brevard County became an objector in 

:his proceeding, isn't it true that the county received a 

.etter from someone at Titusville requesting that the county 

Ibject? 

A 

Q 

I believe we did. 

Okay. And you believe that the primary reason that 

?armton's application adversely affects Brevard County is a 

ihilosophy of the county to utilize existing facilities to 

irovide service before new facilities are built? 

A That's a provision of the comprehensive plan. 

Q You believe that's the primary reason that Farmton's 

ipplication adversely affects Brevard County? 

A Yes. 

Q Are there existing facilities that can meet the needs 

Eor potable water service as proposed by Farmton that are 

? x i s  t ing? 

A Yes. 
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Q Where are they? 

A The north Brevard facility. 

Q So you're saying that a facility two miles east of 

the property can provide the services proposed at the hunt 

camps and at the check stations and at the headquarters of the 

Miami Corporation? 

A We certainly have the infrastructure in place to 

provide that service. What the customer may require to extend 

service inside the project I think is consistent with 

everything we've heard today. We have a utility; we have 

treatment plant capacity. We believe we have a long-term water 

supply that's independent of the area under discussion today, 

and we think we can provide service as well. 

Q So you believe that it is appropriate to consider 

providing service to serve 600 homes, five miles' worth of 

transmission line for that purpose? 

A We are there, and it is possible to do that. 

Q Would you be willing to pay for the cost of those, 

would the county be willing to pay for the cost of extending 

those lines five miles to serve 500 ERCs? 

A No, that's - -  the county would not. That's not the 

way most utilities work. 

Q Okay. I don't think most utilities would be willing 

to extend one anything six miles to serve 600 people. I guess 

it's - -  do you think this is something peculiar to Brevard 
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lounty? 

A I think we have a client or a developer coming to us 

:ight now with not much different numbers, with 800 numbers, 

ind is looking to extend lines, go back to that exhibit, in the 

iive-mile range already. 

Q Well, the initial facilities that Farmton is 

iroposing to serve in Volusia County is only one campsite - -  

I'm sorry, in Brevard County, it's only one campsite; isn't 

;hat correct? 

A I don't know. 

Q Well, you don't know whether that is the case, so you 

lon't know whether - -  what number of ERCs are within Volusia 

lounty or even within eight miles of those existing facilities 

in Brevard County, do you? 

A No. I think the only thing for sure I know, and 

;hat's not for sure, is that there is some 14,000 acres within 

3revard County that you're asking for a certificate for. 

Q And is there any proposal by Farmton as there being 

In immediate need for service to those areas? 

A Not that I'm aware of. Not that has come to the 

zounty . 

Q Isn't it true that the facilities that Farmton 

2elieves are necessary to serve the needs of the - -  that exist 

zurrently within i t s  service territory are allready in place? 

A I don't know the answer to that. 
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Q You would agree that the provision of service by 

'armton in an area that is outside any existing future 

Irojected population areas probably does not adversely affect 

3revard County, would you not? 

A Could you repeat that for me, please? 

Q Sure. You would agree that the provision of service 

)y Farmton in an area that is outside any existing future 

lrojected population areas probably does not adversely affect 

3revard County? 

A Well, you know, probably, no, I wouldn't agree with 

;hat, because if there is no - -  number one, if there is no 

Irojected population base, I don't think there's a need for a 

itility service. And I'll go back to my original statement, 

;hat the county has adopted the position that we should 

naximize the use of existing facilities before we create new 

Eacilities. 

Q Well, I guess I didn't ask you about a population 

2ase. I asked you if you would agree that the provision of 

service by Farmton in an area that's outside any existing 

Euture projected population areas does not affect Brevard 

Zounty, and you would say you don't agree with that. Is that 

dhat you've just told me? 

A Well, to the extent - -  and I guess the distinction 

here is that we're talking about the difference of a utility 

and providing drinking water to sparsely populated single 
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residences. Brevard County has, and I'm sure every county has, 

thousands of such facilities that have an irrigation well and a 

septic tank. I don't think the need for an individual 

self-service potable water supply well in itself generates the 

need for a utility. If we talk, we need to separate the issue 

D f  service to a house and the need with a - -  at some point a 

number of houses will generate the need for a utility to 

provide centralized service, and I think that's where at least 

I get confused on this, is separating those two. 

Q Do you recall when Mr. Wharton took your deposition 

3n March 5th of this year? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And if you'll turn to Page 21 of that deposition 

transcript, Line 5. "Question: Okay. Explain to me how you 

believe certification of Farmton adversely affects the county's 

water system. 

Answer" - -  and I will skip the first paragraph if 

it's okay with you because that simply talks about the 

philosophy that we've already covered. 

The second issue, and this is on Line 4, quote, the 

second issue has to do with the provision of service in an area 

that's outside any existing future projected population areas, 

end quote. 

"Quest ion : How does that adversely affect the 

county's water system, though, the latter point? 
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Answer: It probably doesn't." 

Do you stand by that testimony? 

A I said it then, and from the perspective that a 

?opulation base doesn't exist, then the county's utility would 

lot be serving or competing for service with another utility. 

Ynd I think that was, I'm going to speculate, the basis for my 

statement at that time. 

Q Well, it sounds as though, to me, unless we're just 

calking past each other, that you're saying that the provision 

in the one hand - -  in your deposition you were saying that the 

?revision of service by Farmton to these areas was not - -  

?robably did not adversely affect the county's water system; 

yet now it sounds as though you're saying something else. 

A Well, if Farmton is today providing that service, 

today they are not adversely impacting the county. 

Q Okay. Do you know whether they are currently 

?roviding that service today? 

A From what I've heard today, it sounds like to a 

zertain extent they are. 

Q Okay. You note in your testimony that Brevard County 

has ample capacity in its Mims plant to serve additional needs 

for service; is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Isn't it true t h a t  B r - e v d r d  County's current water use 

permit does not authorize it to provide the quantity of service 
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it was currently providing through its Mims plant? 

A That's correct. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

So the county is exceeding its WUP permit presently? 

We are exceeding our CUP. 

Have you applied for an increase in your CUP? 

Yes, we have. 

Q When was that application filed? 

A Within the last 30 days. 

Q And isn't it true that the county has been exceeding 

its permit for more than two years? 

A Yes. 

Q And this is before the St. Johns River Water 

Yanagement District, is it not? 

A 

Q 

ritusv 

Yes. 

And that's the same entity that has been reviewing 

e's water use application for in excess of two years; 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Has the County Commission ever denied a municipality 

with the ability to do so the right to extend infrastructure 

Dutside its corporate limits? 

A I don't think so. Certainly not water and sewer. 

Let me rephrase and back off on the "certainly not." I don't 

think so. I'm not aware of that. 

Q Isn't it true that Farmton's proposed territory is 
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more than five miles from Titusville's corporate boundaries? 

A I believe so. 

Q You reference the county ordinance I think we were 

referring to a few minutes ago. This was adopted approximately 

six months after the filing of Farmton's application in this 

case? 

A I'm not sure when Farmton filed, but I believe the 

ordinance was adopted in July of '03. 

Q Okay. And that requires any water provider or 

supplier to obtain the consent of the County Commission for 

newly proposed water service areas; correct? 

A No. It requires the consent for the construction of 

infrastructure. 

Q Okay. So it doesn't have anything to do with the 

proposal for service area? 

A No. No, it does not. 

Q Okay. Isn't it true that, in your opinion, this 

ordinance was aimed primarily at preventing the transfer of 

water from Brevard County to other areas outside the county or 

at least allowing Brevard County an opportunity to comment on 

such proposals? 

A Y e s .  

Q And it's your understanding that this was aimed 

primarily at another county entity, Orange County specifically, 

was it not? 
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A I think the initial impetus for the ordinance in 

2002 was more concerned with the ongoing East Central Florida 

vater shortage and perceived actions that might come from the 

vest, yes. 

Q And it was your initial understanding upon reviewing 

:he application or hearing about the application of Farmton 

:hat it looked as though Farmton was proposing through bulk 

service to move water from Brevard County to Volusia County? 

A That was my first impression. 

Q Okay. 

A That's how I would have built the wellfield and 

?ipeline. 

Q And you know now that there's no such proposal by 

Farmton, is there? 

A That's my understanding. 

Q Is it true that the new ordinance has not been 

3pplied to any public or private utility to date? 

A It has been applied to all of the public utilities 

within Brevard County through the grants of consent, and I 

believe there is some consideration given for East Central 

Florida services in there as well. It recognizes the existence 

of those facilities. 

Q So does it recognize the existence of all utilities 

within the county? 

A I believe so. I'd have to go back and look at this 
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Yzronderful document to give you the exact wording on that. But 

that was the intent. As I recall, the intent was to maintain 

the status quo upon adoption. 

Q How many private water utilities are there in Volusia 

County? 

ar 

A 

a n  

co-ops, 

I have no idea. Brevard County? 

I apologize. I'm sorry. 

That's okay. 

In Brevard County. 

There are a handful of regulated utilities. There 

mber of privately owned community water system , 

condominium associations, things like that. Whether 

Q 

that's 20, 30, 40, I'm not sure. 

Are all the private water systems within Brevard 

County recognized and granted consent by this ordinance? 

A Would you like me to see if I can find that - -  

Q Well, let me just - -  if you can find it, yes, if 

you're talking about a listing within the ordinance. 

A I think it's there, but frankly, as we developed it, 

that wasn't the section that generated the most comment and we 

spent the time on. 

Number 15. The district hereby consents to a private 

utility providing water or sewer service to existing customers 

in the i r -  c e r t i f i e d  (sic) territories and to new customers 

within that certificated - -  certificated territories and to new 
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:ustomers within that certificated territory who are able to be 

served by existing water or sewer infrastructure owned by the 

irivate utility as of the date of adoption of this ordinance. 

Q So what this basically does is just grandfather in 

2verybody in their certificated territory that exists at the 

late of adoption of the ordinance. 

A That's correct. 

Q And closes the door to any - -  the possibility of 

mybody else being allowed to create utilities or expand 

itilities unless approved by Brevard County. 

A That's my understanding. 

Q Okay. 

A And let me - -  not create the utility but to construct 

the infrastructure. I think that is - -  again, the issue is 

that. 

Q Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me ask the question at this 

point. What happens in a situation where there's a 

certificated utility that's regulated by this Commission within 

Brevard County that due to customer growth needs to add 

facilities? What do they have to do to get your permission to 

do that? 

THE WITNESS: I think there's two steps. Under the 

comprehensive plan, there's a requirement to come to the County 

Commission and present their case that there is a need to 
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sxpand those facilities. And we had examples of that in the 

late, mid and late 1990s with Florida Cities Water Company made 

two such applications to expand their service area, both of 

iuhich were granted. 

In addition to that, now there's also another step 

that although the ordinance does not require the public hearing 

that the comprehensive plan does, I would think they could - -  

the two steps could be handled concurrently, that there would 

again be a presentation to the Board of County Commissioners 

with the request to build the infrastructure. And again, here 

the ordinance provides guidance on the factors to be considered 

by the Board in making those decisions. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What happens in a situation 

where the Board of County Commissioners denies it and the 

utility has an obligation under a certificate granted by the 

Public Service Commission to provide service to customers 

within its certificated area, and to do that, it has to add new 

facilities? 

THE WITNESS: Well, I think the - -  I would think, and 

I've learned not to attempt to speak for the Board of County 

Commissioners, but if we had an existed certificated area that 

was in existence with inadequate facilities to serve its 

certificated area, that that would be a consideration in their 

decision. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you're just saying most 
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likely that the - -  in that scenario, most likely the permission 

dould be granted to build the facilities. 

THE WITNESS: Let me say that in watching the Board 

for 20 years that I have not found them, in my opinion, to be 

unreasonable in most cases; that they seem to have both feet on 

the ground and make decisions based on the facts they hear. 

Let me say I have not - -  well, I can't speak for our Board of 

County Commissioners. We live and die by threes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, let's just suppose for a 

moment that the Board of County Commissioners were unreasonable 

and there was a certificated utility, certificated by this 

Commission, and that due to customer growth, it was necessary 

to add facilities to serve. 

Just off the top of my head, it appears to me there's 

two possibilities. If they were unable to serve, this 

Commission would have to look at deleting territory because 

with the certificate comes an obligation to serve. You can't 

have the territory and not serve or else this Commission would 

find itself in trying to establish some type of a preemption 

over the county ordinance indicating that this is a 

certificated utility and to provide necessary service at a 

susceptible - -  I mean, an acceptable quality of service that 

would be necessary to build the facilities. So it's either a 

conflict of jurisdiction or else this Commission having to 

delete territory. Do you see it that way, or do you see it 
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3if f erently? 

THE WITNESS: I would add a third alternative; that 

the applicant, that the utility could challenge the county's 

right under this ordinance to deny. You know, they have an 

interest in this as well. And actually, in thinking about 

this, that's always what I thought would happen. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And who would they challenge 

the county's decision to? 

THE WITNESS: I'm not sure. I don't know how that 

dould work, but we're in a litigious society, and we spend a 

lot of time with attorneys these days. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

3Y MR. DETERDING: 

Q Mr. Martens, in discussing the service area 

?romulgated by the county through the creation of the 

2rdinance, the service territory is the entire county outside 

the certificated service territory of existing private 

itilities and the existing service territory of municipalities; 

zorrect? 

A I don't think that the ordinance creates a service 

3rea. The ordinance creates a water and sewer district that 

incorporates all of the unincorporated area of the county 

except the area within the Barefoot Bay Water and Sewer 

District. Now, in my deposition, going back and reviewing, 

there was some discussion of service area, but I'm not so sure 
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that the ordinance creates service areas. I don't think it 

does. If I'm wrong, point it out to me, and it won't be the 

first time. 

Q You prepared the responses to Farmton's first request 

for production of documents - -  I'm sorry, first set of 

interrogatories to Brevard County, did you not? 

A Certain parts. 

Q Okay. Well, your signature is shown on the affidavit 

3s the person who prepared these responses - -  

A Okay. 

Q - -  is it not? 

I'd be glad to show it to you if you'd like to see 

it. 

A I've signed one, yes. 

Q Okay. I believe yours is the only signature to the 

3ffidavit as to who prepared these; correct? 

A If you say so. Other people provided responses 

from county government. 

Q Let me read to you Interrogatory Number 19. 

"Identify the specific section and sections of all ordinances, 

special acts, or interlocal agreements which support the 

zontention that any portion of the water service area proposed 

2y Farmton is located within the water service area of the 

fiistrict. I' 

And the response to that provided under your 
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;ignature is, "Brevard Water and Sewer District Ordinance 

1 3 - 0 3 2  , Section 1. I '  

I So you said that this is the service area. 

inderstand that response to say that this is what designates 

:he service area of the district. 

A Yes, I responded that way. In listening to 

Ir. Hartman's comment this morning, I started thinking about 

;hat and went back and looked at the ordinance, and I will 

idmit that I thought of it that way several months ago. And 

I'm not so sure that the ordinance, in fact, does service areas 

Ln the same way the Commission designates service areas. 

Q So the interrogatory is inaccurate then, the 

interrogatory response? 

A The service - -  the way we have always looked at 

;ervice areas were permissive. Our future service area in our 

zomprehensive plan is not an exclusive service area. We have 

numerous overlapping service areas with the municipalities in 

the county. Is it wrong? I don't know if it's wrong. It's 

different. When I think of service areas in our context, I 

think of in the permissive terms and not in exclusive terms. 

Q So what does that mean as far as your obligation to 

serve in those areas? 

A I don't think we have any obligation to serve. 

Q What does it mean as far as your right to serve in 

those areas? 
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A We have a right. I think it is permissive; that the 

County Commission has said we will ~- we may provide service in 

those areas back to the - -  under the comp plan consideration 

and discussion of the McIntosh Highlands Project. In order to 

provide service, the first thing we have to do is modify the 

boundaries of the service area to include that project. 

Q So you have a right to serve, but no obligation to 

serve in any of the areas within that - -  what did you refer to 

it as? A service - -  you didn't like the term "service area'' or 

"service territory. I' 

A Well, I'm not sure that the ordinance declares the 

unincorporated areas of the county the county's service areas. 

It certainly identifies the unincorporated areas as the areas 

in which the county wishes to be involved in the decision to 

construct water and wastewater infrastructure. 

Q What does the ordinance call that? It doesn't call 

it service area? 

A In the grants of consent, it talks about service 

areas for the cities. In the ordinance itself, it's to create 

a special - -  dependent special district, and the dependent 

special district is the unincorporated areas of the county less 

the Barefoot Bay dependent special district. 

Q So it grants authority to others by calling it a 

service a r e d ,  b u t  it's not calling it a service area for the 

county where it doesn't grant such consent. I don't understand 
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:hat. 

A I would - -  the answer I think, yes, that that is my 

response. And I'm hesitating because in looking at something 

?lse, I thought - -  at the end of Section 8, it refers to the 

jistrict governing bodies shall - -  the Board of County 

Jommissioners and/or the district governing body shall not 

3stablish or otherwise regulate rates or the manner in which 

rates are established or adopted by a municipality for any 

service area in which a right to consent - -  a right or consent 

-0 provide service has been granted. So it talks about service 

lreas, but it discusses the service areas in the terms that the 

nunicipalities within those designated areas may continue to 

zonstruct water and wastewater infrastructure without further 

lpproval of the County Commission. 

Now, is that a service area? That's one way to look 

lt a service area. But does that mean no one else can go in 

:here and provide service, and that's not what this does. This 

loes not provide any exclusive areas for the cities. 

Q And it doesn't provided any exclusive area for the 

county either. 

A That's my understanding. 

Q Okay. Isn't it true that the district owns no 

facilities to provide service in many of these areas? 

A The Brevard County Water and Sewer District owns no 

facilities. 
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It owns no facilities whatsoever? 

That is correct. 

Q Okay. So just so I'm clear about the - -  your 

tnderstanding of the intent of the declaration of the 

:ountywide whatever you want to call it for the district, 

:ervice area, territory, it is intended to exclude others 

-ather than a declaration that Brevard County is ready, 

Tilling, and able to serve any of all of those areas in the 

:ounty; correct? 

A Would you accept a rephrasing of that? 

Q 

A 

No, to be honest with you. 

Then, no, I don't think that's correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What is incorrect with that 

; tatement? 

THE WITNESS: We discussed this ordinance with the 

:ounty and the eight utility providing cities within the county 

Ior two years. And the simple statement that I would say is 

:he County Commission wanted a formal place at the table when 

\rater and wastewater infrastructure was going to be constructed 

in the unincorporated areas of the county; that without the 

irdinance, without the special district, the County Commission 

lad no right other than - -  different than any other citizen or 

interested party to participate in those decisions; and they 

santed - -  they thought it was important that they had a formal 

role where they were guaranteed a voice at the table, not just 
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to be heard, but also to a play a part in the decisions. 

And the distinction is - -  and I'll admit that the 

cities were very much afraid that this was simply - -  that the 

county was going to deny everything. And I don't think that 

that is what's going to happen. But there's many places, most, 

if not all, of the times when the city has proposed 

infrastructures outside of their corporate limits, the county 

not only has agreed but I think has supported it. It was a 

role to bring the county to the table to participate in the 

decision-making process and not with -~ I think it was 

coincidental that Farmton came up and it was an issue involved 

dith the PSC, really had more to do with the water management 

district and governmental utilities. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q In your deposition, if you'll turn to Page 57. 

qgain, at the bottom of that page, Line 24, an answer to a 

question that I won't go into the whole thing. But it is 

ziccurate to say that you say beginning on Line 24 that the 

2rdinance itself describes all of the unincorporated areas of 

the county, as I remember it, as a service area of the water 

2nd sewer district. 

A Yes, I'm sure I said that. 

Q So you did refer to it as a service area for the 

zounty? 
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A Yes, I did. And certainly the county is - -  under the 

irdinance, the county could extend service in there now that we 

lave the issue of the comprehensive plan and the future sewer 

service areas that would need to be modified that go with that. 

Q And this is an attempt to exclude rather than, as I 

said, a declaration of a ready, willingness, and ability by the 

zounty to provide that service - -  to exclude others from being 

2ble to provide that service without county approval? 

A Well, to require county - -  to require the county to 

3e involved in the decision-making process either to approve or 

fieny. One side of it is, yes, it could be used as an 

txclusionary mechanism, and it's also an approval mechanism. 

Q Okay. But they could not provide it, in your mind, 

without county approval despite the fact the county may not be 

in a position to do so? 

A Correct. 

Q Are you familiar with East Central Florida service 

territory within Brevard County? 

A Generally. 

Q Excuse me? 

A Generally. 

Q Okay. You would agree, would you not, that you have 

not seen any specific detriment from the existence of East 

Central Florida service territory granted by the Florida Public 

Service Commission more than ten years ago? 
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A The existence of that - -  going back to my earlier 

zomment, the existence of that certificated territory has not 

2ffected or had any relation to other existing facilities, so 

in that regard, no. Their territory is west of the St. Johns 

3nd Brevard County. There are no existing publicly owned or 

privately owned utility systems that - -  at all, much less any 

dith unused capacity. 

Q But Brevard County did oppose that application 

3riginally, did it not? 

A I don't know. If we did, I didn't participate in it. 

Q NOW, as we discussed earlier, the Mims plant does not 

have adequate water use permit - -  an adequate CUP permit to 

neet its existing needs; yet you have taken the position in 

your testimony that you believe the construction by Farmton of 

2ny water treatment facilities within its proposed service 

territory would be a duplication of the county's system at the 

Yims plant; correct? 

A Correct. 

Q If Farmton already has facilities in place providing 

potable water service to the present needs within its 

certificated service territory, isn't it true that any proposal 

by the county to provide service to those same areas would be a 

duplication of Farmton's existing facilities? 

A Yes, it would. 

Q And therefore in violation not - -  of your - -  of what 
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rou say is the purpose of this - -  or the philosophy of the 

:ounty; correct? 

A Well, I would argue - -  I personally don't consider 

?armton's facilities to be utility facilities. They're 

individual self-supply. And I don't think - -  my personal 

]pinion is those aren't utility services. 

Q Well, they are providing service to the hunt clubs, 

2re they not? 

A We have - -  like I said, we have thousands of houses 

3n individual wells that are not, you know - -  they are 

?roviding water service. If you're going to have a facility, 

you need water. We've heard that all day. You need water and 

individual self-supply is one way to get it. 

Q Well, you say "self-supply." Are the hunt club 

nembers who are proposed to be receiving service from Farmton 

related parties in some manner to Farmton? 

A I have no idea. 

Q Well, if they're not - -  

A Is a rental house - -  is the service provided to 

rental property, is it provided to the tenants, or is it a 

basic service provided to the underlying property? Is it 

portable? 

Q Don't you provide service to rental property? 

A Certainly. But not to the rental - -  and the people 

that rent it receive the benefit of that service. But when 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2 9 7  

:hey leave, the service remains with the underlying property. 

:t's the service to the property that then is through contract 

.s rented to the people that live there. 

Q So you don't have customers who are just renters. 

lou have only service - -  

A Well, no. 

Q - -  to the property owner? 

A We certainly do, 

;ervice doesn't disappear. 

:enter. 

Q Okay. Is there 

A 

but when the renters leave, the 

The service remains for the next 

omething in Farmton's application 

:hat would suggest to you that they don't intend to do that, 

Irovide service to whoever needs it there? 

No. And I'll say again, I haven't reviewed Farmton's 

ipplication. 

MR. DETERDING: That's all I have. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Staff. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. RODAN: 

Q Good evening. The special water and sewer district 

y'ou mentioned in your testimony summary was created by county 

2rdinance and not by state statute; is that correct? 

A It was created by county ordinance as - -  I don't know 

if I've - -  correct the way I phrase this, but I think under 

3hapter 153 of the statutes, special districts. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

298 

MS. RODAN: Thank you. That's all the questions we 

have. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioners. 

Redirect. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KNOX: 

Q Mr. Martens, if you could grab the portable mike for 

a second, and I'd like you to stand up at the map. 

If you could locate on that map the boundary between 

Volusia County and Brevard County. Okay. Follow that along to 

the corner, and do you see there a star? 

A I see the star. 

Q Okay. And could you look up on the legend above you 

just to your right, and tell me what that star represents? 

A Existing. It says, if it's a red star, and this 

looks like a red star here. 

Q Yes, that would be existing fire protection well? 

A It just says, "existing." 

Q Okay. Look up above that. 

A It said "2F," so is "F" fire protection? 

Q Look up above the star on the legend. 

A Yes, that's what it says. 

Q Now, if you'd follow that line down going south, 

what's the next thing you come to? 

A 7R, a blue circle. 
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Q And what is that? 

A Proposed. 

Q Proposed what? 

A Retail potable well proposed. 

Q And do you see any words next to the 7R? 

A Proposed campsite. 

Q All right. And do you see any other stars in that 

yellow area below the Volusia County line? 

A 11 and 12F, 11F east of 7R and 12F in the central 

southern part. 

Q What are those? 

A Proposed fire protection wells. 

Q Okay. So we have one proposed campsite in that area; 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And it's 14,000 acres incorporated in Brevard County 

in that proposed certificated area; correct? 

A If that's the - -  approximately, if that's the area. 

Q If you assume that's the case, in your experience as 

a utility director, have you ever seen a situation where 14,000 

acres of certificated area were required to support one 

campsite ? 

MR. DETERDING: Objection. This is outside the scope 

of the cross-examination that we have posed to Mr. Martens. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: There's been an objection. 
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MR. KNOX: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Martens I think twice 

testified that he does not think this is a utility or to 

qualify as a utility, and that's exactly what this question 

3oes to. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I'll allow the question. You 

nay answer it. 

THE WITNESS: Will you ask it again, please. 

BY MR. KNOX: 

Q In your experience as a utility director, have you 

tver seen the need for 14,000 acres of territory to support one 

clamps i t e ? 

A Well, it seems excessive. I have not seen a request 

like this, and that doesn't mean I have much experience with 

this. But 14,000 acres of service territory for one campsite 

seems excessive. 

Q Mr. Martens, you can sit down again. Thank you. 

Mr. Martens, has Brevard County or the special district been 

approached to provide service to that campsite that you just 

talked about? 

A No. 

Q Now, you're a utilities director. You have 

experience in the area of providing water service? 

A Yes. 

Q If Farmton or Miami Corporation or the hunt club had 

approached Brevard County to provide a 200 gallon bladder type 
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done that to that campsite? 

A Technically could we have done it? 

Q Yes. 

A Yes, yes. 

Q Could any other utility company, Titusville, done the 

same thing? 

A Of course. 

Q Isn't it true that that campsite with that kind of 

facilities would be self-supporting in terms of water? 

A Well, a local well and a bladder tank to provide the 

water for the uses of the campsite, I would think so. 

Q Mr. Martens, you during your cross-examination 

indicated that there were other ways that developers could 

provide water service, and I think you were talking about the 

McIntosh Highlands at the time. You've indicated that McIntosh 

is going to apply for both an amendment to the service 

territory in the Brevard County's comprehensive plan; is that 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And at the same time apply for the consent from the 

special district to put in their own facilities should they be 

denied the amendment? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, if the developer puts in his own facilities, is 
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:here something that the developer has to do in order to get 

3pproved? 

A For a project like McIntosh with multiple ownership, 

ue would require a system to be built to the basic county 

standards and turned over, dedicated to the county for 

3peration and maintenance. And additionally in this situation, 

de would probably look very closely at some additional 

standards to make sure that the system would operate properly 

2nd provide quality service. 

Q Is it customary for developers in Brevard County to 

Can 

put in their own water systems and water distribution systems 

m d  dedicate them to the county? 

A Yes. 

Q You mentioned the Barefoot Bay Special District. 

you describe what that was? 

A Barefoot Bay is a modular home community of about 

5,000 units, 4,700, something like that, in the southern end of 

Brevard County. It's provided water and sewer service by a 

certificated company, Florida Cities Water Company. It was 

acquired by the Florida Governmental Utility Authority. 

Brevard County was a member at one time. Brevard County 

desired to take individual control of that system without 

encumbering the remainder of the countywide system with the 

financial obligations of the Barefoot Bay system. And we did 

that by creating a special dependent district using the 
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certificated service area as the district's boundary. We 

adopted your rates, fees, and charges, and have operated it 

identically since then. 

The Board of County Commissioners sits as the 

governing body of the Barefoot Bay Water and Sewer District. 

And the County Water Resources Department operates the system 

under contract with the Board of County Commissioners. 

Q Was that special district created under Chapter 

153 as well? 

Chapter 153; correct. 

Q Mr. Martens, is there any contemplation on the part 

of the county, I'm talking Brevard County, utility department 

to either lease or sell facilities at the Mims water plant to 

the special district? 

A Well, it's been discussed. I think there are 

complications involved involving the countywide system, bond 

documents. We provide service both inside and outside of 

municipal corporate limits, and I think there are some 

ownership issues to be resolved before we charge ahead and do 

that. We are approaching the end of the bonding capability and 

our bond documents, and when those obligations are clear, I 

think we would have much more flexibility in doing that. But 

we certainly have several service areas that provide service to 

strictly unincorporated areas of the county. 

MR. KNOX: I have no further questions. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you, Mr. Martens. You 

nay be excused. 

(Witness excused.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I believe we're going to at 

:his point break for the evening. We're going to reconvene 

xomorrow at nine o'clock. Looking at the remainder of the 

vitnesses, it appears to me it's conceivable we could finish 

;omorrow and that will be a goal. 

And is there anything else to come before the 

:ommission before the evening recess? Hearing nothing, we will 

stand adjourned and reconvene tomorrow at 9:00 a.m. Thank you. 

(Hearing recessed at 5:35 p.m. and will resume at 

3:OO a.m. on June 23, 2004, at the same location.) 

(Transcript continues in sequence with Volume 3.) 

- _ - - _  
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